
By Hand and E-mail 
Stanley L. Cohen, Esq. 
The Law Firm of Stanley Cohen 

& Associates, LLC 
119 Avenue D, 5th Floor 
New York, New York 10009 

Re: United States v. Abu Ghayth 
S14 98 Cr. 1023 (LAK) 

Dear Mr. Cohen: 

U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of New York 

86 Chambers Street 
New York, New York 10007 

March 13, 2014 

Please find attached a copy of the responses provided by Guantanamo Detainee Khalid 
Sheikh Mohammed to the questions that were drafted by you and propounded to him on or about 
February 27,2014, pursuant to the Court's order dated February 19,2014. Government 
personnel have determined that no portions of the responses are classified, and thus the responses 
are being,provided to you without redaction. Please be advised that the Government's decision 
not to redact any portion of the responses is not an indication that the Government believes the 
responses are relevant to the issues raised in the above-referenced case. To the contrary, 
undersigned counsel contends that portions of the responses bear no relevance, or marginal 
relevance, to the issues at hand. However, as the responses are unclassified, the Government is 
providing them to you in full. 

rs, 

ant United States Attorney 
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In the name of Allah, the Compassionate, the Merciful 

Praise be to Allah 

Concern 

I rec ived the set of questions from the lawyer for Sulaiman Abu Ghayth (.PJlah preserve 
him) consisting of 34 pages and 451 questions. It reminded me of the interrogations at the 
Blatck Sites and the questions from the dirty team at Guantanamo. 

I w· not answer all of the questions because I have doubts about the goal behind some of 
the . Because of time constraints, the impending trial, and the fact that these questions -

lik~e ". interrogation questions - are similar to one another and repeat the same question in 
a · erent way, I won't constrain myself to the same format. My answers will be in 
para· raph form instead, covering most of the subjects. 

I watt to help my brother, Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth (Allah preserve him) but- as I 
have mentioned before to my attorney - only if the request comes from him and not from 
the l wyer. My answers are according to the best of my knowledge and beliefs about him. 

I w)t to inform Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth's lawyer that I suspect the U.S. government 
has J hand in these questions because they correspond precisely with the way the CIA and 
FBI )~osed questions. I may be right or wrong in this assmnption, but I feel that most of the 
queshons do not serve the interests of his client or anyone for that matter; yet they are 
priJ~ily dn:ected to me. Therefore, he should know in advance that I will not agree to give 
any l~deo or audio recorded testimony at the request of the government or the defense. 
These answers should suffice. 

Th.JF are extensive areas about which I have no knowledge because of the nature of my 
worl~ with Al-Qaeda during which I held many different positions during different periods 
of nfe and under different conditions. Therefore, my answers in these areas will be based 
upon my general knowledge. 

For Lstance, in the case of all the questions about the training camps, I do not have any 
info±matiou on them during this period because I was appointed by Sheikh Osama bin 
Lad n (Allah have mercy upon him) as head of operations abroad, meaning all the jihadist 
oper tions conducted outside of Afghanistan. It was administrative work consisting of 
rece~ving trained operators from the military officials such as Sheikh Abu Hafs Al-Masri or 
Shefh Osama bin Laden (Allah have mercy upon them) without getting involved in 
tr~ng matters. The candidates for operations were sent to me and I had other means of 
trai~·ng them apart from the well-known camps. I did not need the camps to prepare my 
men because of the nature of the special operations that were conducted outside 
Afg anistan. 
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My personal acquaintance with Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth 

He was an imam and the Friday sermon speaker at one of the mosques in Kuwait (to 
the best of my knowledge) 

He is a pious man and has memorized the Holy Qm'an in its entirety. 

Generally spealdng, the Mujahideen respected all the Imams or Sheikh hs and 
afforded them opportunities to give lectures at any time. 

I fixst came to know him through audiocassette tapes of Friday sermon prayers. 
These cassette tapes were widely distributed among the people and in Islamic 
libraries. 

~·,· :H~ cl~4'\~9't Pl~i.~riYrn.ilit~1·yr()ie ~r{c(t(}tl\~best_ of'n{ylc~o,~Ledgeile ilid~l6t re~eive 
ci~Y:\ili!It.?~-;y t~~iri;!gg.·s.(al1.:Yc)ftb..e ti~~illing.camp:s fo~:_tl'le 1\,f1lja11ic1(~en.in 
AfgJia.iliit.~~] 

!;, · -.fa6 ~6-fr~98.JJ-~Ii~t·f§iie~· il1.¢'f)'li~.6~i~~{11ii11: :s.t ~ fi-'airl:ihi .c~ll1P co1'l~iclering·my 
um~tet4Yi~iti8·t~-~h~-i.l;~in~11i•·9~i~J)8:4iWirii.t'hft.f!)~_ri.9cfof'fEil~.' 

He did not know me by any name other than the one I was using in Afghanistan 
(Mukhtar Al-Balushi) so he never knew my real name: Khalid Al-Shaikh or Iilialid 
Shaikh Mohammad. I think that Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth (Allah preserve 
him) learned my real name through the media after my arrest, just as I learned real 
name of Abu Hafs Al-Masri (Allah have mercy upon him) through the media after he 
was killed. Allah only knows. 
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The relationship between Al-Qaeda and the government of the Islamic Emirate of 
Afghanistan. 

Al-Qfeda and the Arab Mujahideen who sacrificed their blood, souls, and money for the 
victo~:l:y of the Mghan people were part of the people who partnered with them to defeat and 
expe the Russian forces in the previous war. The Mujahideen, regardless of their ethnic or 
orga1 'zational affiliation had the own activities, whether it be involvement with the 
milit 'Y, charitable institutes, or relief organizations. 

At t at time, during that particular war, the U.S. government was against the Russian 
force for political and strategic reasons of their own. Thus they gave their proxies in the 
Arab

1
:an Peninsula countries the green light to flood the Mghan Mujahideen with money, 

resol1rces, and Arab fighters; and they also opened the doors for merchants and 
busi1essmen to donate money without conditions or restrictions. The selfishness and 
stubfornness of Uncle Sam pushed the U.S. government to flood their agent, the Pakistani 
InteJ-Services Intelligence (lSI), with millions or billions of dollars in order to defeat the 
Russian Army by supporting the Afghan Mujahideen. This indirect support was the 
prinliple cause of the development of the non-Afghan groups and organizations in 
Mghanistan and their ability to achieve what they desired without any security pressures 
imp sed by U.S. allies such as Pakistan, Saudi Arabia, and other countries around the 
worl . They never supported the non-Mghan groups directly with money or weapons, but 
by lowing absolute freedom for young people to spend their own money and take 

Sam destroyed his own country by his own hand with his stupid foreign policy. 

It wjs in this climate of complete inattention from the West that the groups in Mghanistan 
wer!able to develop their capabilities. The countries in the West were busy settling scores 
wit the Russians and licking their chops over Mujahideen victories, and for the most part 
rem1'ned completely blind to what was happening in the camps and on the non-Mghan 
Mujjhideen front. 

Whef the Mujahideen prevailed and the Russians withdrew, the Americans awoke from 
the~· state of inattention; but it was too late. The American media had not yet used terms 
sue~, as "foreign fighters" or "Mghan Arabs" or "terrorists" or even "the Mghan resistance", 
rath r the fixed term in the Western media policy at that time was "Mujahideen". CNN, 
BB , Reuters, France Press were all united in using the term "Jihad" to describe the 
Mghan resistance and "Mujahideen to describe the fighters, whether Mghan or Arab, and 
the tlerm "martyrs" for those among them who were killed. 

All ~I this was to impart international legitimacy on the Western and Islamic support for 
the \1ujahideen in an effort to limit the expansion of the Red Bear and prevent it from 
obt 'ning a warm-water port. At the time, Jihadist speeches were accepted and even 
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supp rted and applauded by the West because they mirrored their strategic interests. 
Spee hes by Sheikh Abdullah Azam or Sheikh Tamim Al-Adnani or addresses by Sheikh 
OsJa bin Laden (Allah have mercy upon them) were accepted by the West. Every one of 

t~~ei:~~~~s~ble.t~.~~.~~-.n·::.l~.~~~:~rt~-~~.:.~ut~.~~~-~.~m ~~stto~est inthe cou~try. ·.·· 

~l!t!ti~~~7~1ri1l~J~t1~~~!~i~1~~~~~~~~i!~~r&N~:J!~~L~~~~d 
•.• • "••'•1•··,-:••'o•c••·•••••••• •••• •:•:·•• ··,.;· •••• •-•••;"·'•: ••·•,• ,•••c•:• ···:·•·•;•••we;•• ·.:·· •· •••o••: •• • ••• ••,••.·•'•.·····"·········• • .,: .... ··' ;. 

\lim . .r~lrr~::>tc:;cl.l,1.il11· Jiifa,ct,:the.Y ~YQl11fl ha.Y~ ~~sg#p(:}clhi!llaf>. ~:t.M~Ijal1ifl .. anc1called hilT1 a, 
he~d fl:()»i•ey$.~:; ]1~ ~~~8-npt 1) grt o(tiiat Jabi·ic a,l1cl. eli~ not p'artieip ate .ill. J iil,:~cl g t that tin1 e' 

Wes ern hypocrisy became apparent when these same Ar,ab Mujahideen started supporting 
the:iJ: Muslim brothers in Chechnya against Russian occupation or when they set off to 
Bos ia to help their Bosnian brothers prevail against the savage brutality of Serbian 
atta ks. 

It w s then that the term changed from "Mujahid" to "terrorist" and from "Jil1ad" to · 
"terr~rism". It was as if the Russians who occupied Mghanistan were not the same 
Rus~ians who occupied Chechnya or support for the Bosnians was not the same as support 
for t~1e Mghans. It was as if the charges of conspiracy, material support to terrorism, and 
killi g civilians did not apply to killing Russians and Mghan soldiers and incurring civilian 
casu lties in Mghanistan; but after the Russian defeat, they became charges affixed to 
any~ne who practiced the same Jihad or self-defense or defense of the oppressed in a place 
or manner incompatible with Western strategic interests. 

Whe the West under U.S. leadership had achieved its goals in Mghanistan, and the 
Rus ians had withdrawn leaving the Mujahideen victorious, they left behind them a mass 
of w rring Mghan factions and focused on clearing the Arabs out of the area. Thus began a 
camlaign of mass arrests and deportations to Pakistan. 

But tt was too late because some of the organizations had become a part of the Mghan 
peopjle. As for Mghanistan itself, the West did not support the Mghan organizations in 
ordel. to bring about peace, prosperity, and security in Mghanistan. The U.S. proxies in the 
lSI ~(nder American control foiled every attempt to reconcile or integrate the various 
Mg an organizations. Every time they saw a strong leader or an organization, they 
sup orted him in order to split his organization off from the others. They split the group 
Hezf Al-Islami Hekmatyar into two parties- one by the same name and one by the name 

HezJ, Al-Islami Y ounis Khalis and so on. 

All f that was done to ensure that even if the Mujahideen prevailed and expelled the 
Rus · ians they would be left powerless and Mghanistan would remain dependent on 
P stan, India, Iran, or Tajiltistan, just as the West desired. But when the pillaging, 
loot'ng, killing, rape, and gang violence spread and security in Mghanistan disappeared, 
the eople were compelled to revolt, and an appropriate movement for change emerged 
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fror the south of Kandahar. Thus the Taliban movement came on the scene and spread 
lilre I' ildfire. They did not meet any resistance from anyone as each Afghan province fell to 
the~~ one after the other. The people welcomed them, having grown weary and desperate 
fro · the deteriorated security situation; and it was only a few months before they entered 
Kab u and declared an Islamic Emirate of Afghanistan. 

Sec rity finally prevailed in the cities of Kabul, Kandahar, Jalalabad, etc. to the extent that 
they become even more secm·e than American cities such as Chicago, New York, Dallas, 
and os Angeles. The peace in which the people lived became almost engraved in the heart 
of e ch Afghan person and will never leave the memory of the Afghan people or the history 
of ghanistan until judgment day. By the admission of the United Nations, the Islamic 
Em· ·ate of Afghanistan was able to stop drug cultivation in the entire country for the first 
tim, in over 200 years. 

A trtveler could travel from the south of the country from J alalabad to Kabtu then go west 
to K ndahar and turn north to Herat without being robbed. Moreover, shops and crowded 
mar ets did not close their doors during prayer times. A storeowner could safely leave his 
star~ open to go perfm·m his prayers in the mosque, and he would come back knowing that 
not~ing would be missing from his merchandise. Sometimes, he would find money left on 
the ·able by someone who purchased something and left. Such stories had spread in the 
Isla ic world while the hypocrite West besieged Afghanistan from every side, preventing 
the ghan airline from flying, and putting pressure on Pakistan to halt support and close 
the oads. 

:~:];~~:;.~:~~::;ri~;~~:~~;7c~~;;::~;~.:~:~,j;::~t;lfy;~;;q~t they 

~if~~l~~tt~~rtf~Qt~itiM~mr~~:i~~:~li~~~:~~;~;;i.~~rrt;~:~;~~0 .. · 
th~ . sJ~l]Jj~. :BJ!ll:i!·~~~.Qf~Jgha:Jit?t.~P.:ll'CJ:ffi, ~.state. ofqapdj_~§, ¢rillfe; killi11g, ~Ild rtar~otiCS tq fl 
si~ie ··br·s~c~ii:·itY: ~~~4P.-8S:~8J 

Tha was a momentous turning point in the history of the Islamic movements since the fall 
oft e Islamic Caliphate. It constituted a turnaround in which Islamic Sharia law wotlid 
rtlie far removed from subordination to colonial powers and without appeasing or making 
con essions to the secularists in the country. With total success in removing the differences 
bet een different nationalities and ethnicities, Afghanistan, under the leadership of the 
Em"r of the Believers, Mullah Omar (Allah preserve him) was the first Islamic state that 
tre ed all Muslim men equally, whether they be Chinese, Indian, Chechnyan, Arabs, or 

We terners. T'lii~ w6t~y~t~{(§gg1~ :l\1!~9J-i.~Il,~_q:L\ql~rs, ·PJ'eag~'l~J:~, _q~~tfl:t;)g~u.a.:rJvt.iisli!lls tq 
t~:~.• __ 1ettp.1f~~1?·~~~.f~·n·.fO~:P9~~§.f~-~t:'v.~K~ei#~.JPg~~;i\lf,t.i:}~-:~"hi~~1~)~g~ri~~.8~ .•. ~p~to 
l(O!a,~~ fl·oll1_it.lVIgr~py(31','13,()P:lf? m(),vecl y,rit]i{li'~irf?:!¢:Iies.~q]jy~_t}:lere.I3.11Cltoe~cape Jl~e 
relil?;iot1Spe};sec}1tiqn.t~~y_faqecli~t1i~{ic~~~tri~~:i]:itleyW~nt.~ci.tolivefrtpe~ce ati;~9bserv~ 
t}l~· ·re1{g£~tifilp~~cti9~#: An example of this was the Uighurs and people from Myanmar. 
Ma 'y also came from Iraq to escape Saddam, along with numerous people from other 
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cou tries. Some even came from the West with their families to live in peace in a land 
gove ned by Islam 

Eve, though the existence of Jihadist gToups and their camps predated the Islamic Emirate 
of r'ghanistan, the government did not bother them or their camps because they were 
asso iated with the Ministry of Defense and aided the state against the Northern Alliance. 
This is how complications arose for some analysts. Is every non-Afghan Arab Muslim a 
me ber of Al-Qaida? Or has everyone in Guantanamo fought against the Americans? The 
U.S. government intentionally fosters these misconceptions in order to achieve its goal. 
Ma dignitaries visited Afghanistan including Sheikh Abdullah Al-Turki, the Saudi 
Mi ster of Islamic Endowments; Sheikh Yusif Al-Qardawi, head of the Islamic Scholars 
Ass ciation; the Grand Mufti of Egypt at the time, Sheikh Farid Wasil; the head of the 
Sha~ia courts in Qatar, Sheikh Thaqil Al-Shammari, Dr. Ali Al-Qaradaghi; the thinker 
Fah~ni Huwaidi, and other scholars from Pakistan such asAl-Mawlawi Nizam Al-Deen 
Shakzi; the head of the Paldstani Council for Observing the Crescent, Al-Mawlawi 
Abdhliah Ghazi; and his son, Al-Mawlawi Abd-Al-Rashid Ghazi. There were other types of 
visit from Emirs from the United Arab Emirates to practice the sport of falconry. They 
wo d travel to Kandahar in their private jets. 

Som visitors of every type met members of the government of the Islamic Emirate of 
Afg anistan and some even visited the Mujahideen camps if they were considered 

M~~~]Jci1~kf~·or:::~k~::~i:::.~~1\~i0dr~~l~&!v1~~·~;~i!!K~~~~t·~·.~· 
ideb!()gy: During the school vacations in the Arab peninsula, Kandahar would be filled with 
visi ors, but that doesn't mean that anyone who gave a lecture in the Mujahideen 
gue thouses planned military operations. It was commonplace for visiting scholars at these 
cam s to give religious lectures warning them against radicalization, unlawfulldlling, and 
"tak · " - the act of declaring someone an infidel. Such visitors would return back to their 

cou tries after their vacations were over. 
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The Media and Abu Ghavth 

Sheil h Osama bin Laden (Allah have mercy upon him) appointed me to serve as head of 
theJs-Sahab Foundation for Media Publication, the media front for Al-Qaeda, for a period 
oft' e. 

Al-Q eda's media policy in its war against the enemy occupiers is clear and appropriate to 
then ture of the war. It is a war of attrition since we are not confronting our enemies in 
conv ntional warfare due to the lack of balance between the two sides and the 
asym etrical nature of the conflict. 

The nemy occupier of the Islamic World is a super power with millions of soldiers and a 
budg t of billions while we are a small organization whose members are limited in numbers 
and apabilities. There is no comparison between the two sides, so it is obvious that we 

~~~~~.~J~~~~r·:::;f~~t~t::~::::::!::~~~~;:;~;h;~1~~~=~t~:t;:~~ ~~!~:;:: t~~= to the 

evens that happened before, during, and after September 11th knows this very well. The 
U.S. overnment canceled some joint military maneuvers in Jordan and closed some 
emb ssies in the period of time before 9/11 as a result of some media publications, some 
leak d news, the release of some simple clips of a speech by Osama bin Laden, and the 
publ~ation of the video "Destroyin. g· the Destroyer" at that time as well as the appearance 
ofpitures ofMujahideen camps and their military training. 

All tfs was not in vain because, while the enemy has capabilities that we do not possess, 
we hJ~e the same mental capacity Allah gave to all; and while they use their muscles, we 
use ur minds. Sheil{:h Osama (Allah have mercy upon him) was very wise in every order 
he g ve us; all of this was part of our media policy to achieve our strategic goals of 
exha sting our enemy's efforts, capabilities, and financial assets to the greatest extent 
poss'ble. Every state of emergency declared and every change of alert level that inflicts 
speci · c procedures on the military and civilian sectors costs the country millions of dollars. 
It is nough that the U.S. government has incurred losses upwards of a trillion dollars in 
the Jars it has waged in the aftermath of 9/11, the bleeding of which continues to this day. 

As foi~ thr;Yqllestiop ;ibbutwh€Jth~r every,p6,i·s(),!ltasi{ecl'vvgl1ip:lB(!ril1g stateiAehts,l~now the 

~:~:::~~~~~~~~!ttt~1:i~;t~:1~;:~t:~1F;f~:~~=!~~;~::::!e . . . -l. ., :· . . ... . . . ... ·:· .. ·.·· ... . . .. . .. . · ....... , ...... ···-~:-................................... ··.· .... _,. . .· ..... , ..... " . . . 
leg.drshtp fu.te!lcls to l1Pd~rtake. ~ni~ the pli:p:ll:! . .f'()r th,en1. are b}()vy:n on1y to the'.leadep of tl1e 

op~r,f~i?ll·~l1~itJ1~pi{~~a.f~:C1!l~l_se6u~i~? .. o~~i~lsJ"!l~?l~~:cl;i~9S.~ ?a.rrying_()~.lt. the,. ()p~rati~ns 
are n()tpriyy ~()tll(:; .sP._ecrficLplans u11trl_tht: go_?.~ or.th€l. trme ofthe. operatro~l approaches for 
fear·th.B.,t the op~i;iitio .. l1.wj}l be botdi1ecl:orll1iscari·iecL 
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Perh ps there is another reason for a person to be tasked regardless of his affiliation and 
that s the rhetorical ability of the person or the strength and discipline of his speech or his 
liter ry fortitude- especially if he is an eloquent, spellbinding speaker. Perhaps that is one 
of th reasons why Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth was commissioned for this mission. 
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List of Names 

Ther were a number of lists of recorded names in addition to cards, IDs, and charts located 
in · erent places, either houses or other places around Pakistan and ·Mghanistan. 

You thould know that most of the Arab families had alternate sources of income. Some of 
the ·practiced business while others did fulltime work to support the Islamic Emirate of 
Mgh nistan whether it be as teachers, engineers, Mujahideen, or those who cooperated 
with the Ministry of Defense. 

Ther were wealthy philanthropists who would send donations through val"ious means 
acco ding to the number of groups in a given area of Mghanistan. There were Arab 
comiunities ofnon-Mghans in Jalalabad, Khost, Kabul, Herat, Kandahar, and so on; so 
ther was not a single, fixed system for dispersing funds, especially the expenses and 
fina cial guarantees distributed by Al-Qaeda to its beneficiaries. It did not limit its 
me4,ers, families, and sympathizers, rather it gave freely to all needy families, regardless 
of thyir loyalties or affiliation, for two reasons: one, because it was a religious obligation 
ordejing them to consider all the needy equally and fairly and without discriminating 
between them; and two, because it was a requirement for many donors to not limit funding 
to ady particular category of people but to give to all those who needed it. There were 
tabl~s and charts and lists of names of families who received.aid and these lists did not 
deli eate the affiliation of the person on record. At one point the Islamic Emira~e of 
Mgh nistan was trying to keep track of the number of Arabs and arrivals from abroad, so 
ther were permits and cards to facilitate their legal dealings. Many of the Arab brothers 
had ost their legal papers, travel visas, and all their official documents; so some of the 
grou s tried to make lists of names of everyone who wanted to obtain Mghan ID cards 
with ut distinguishing between groups, or for anyone who needed one. 
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"Brevity" Cards 

One f the problems the Islamic Emirate of Mghanistan suffered from as a result of the 
oppr ssive sanctions imposed by the U.S. and its regional allies was that it did not have an 

::r:~::::~:::~:: :t~~:r~~::~:~:~~:~n~i:::::r~a:~::~:::y non-
3~~!~iJfi?ili~~~i~~iJt~!X~igr;~t1~E~~~~!~~=aPs~i 
'c· .. l··-.· . ····•:· .. :• ......... ,., .... , . .. ::· ··. ·.·.·.-••· ·. '' ... , ....... , ..... , .... . . . ·": . 
cha1 ·r1els. heiilg 11sed during time$. of heavy C()Ill111tmicatiol1: 

Acco dingly, these cards were put into use because they included most of the important 
fac · ties such as hospitals, workshops, schools, or other codes written on the chart along 

w1th ~-·list''0f'i:>~9i:>i~.·w·49-lJ§~cl tl1$rn~ 'thi~.-w~e1i6iHhi1te4 to)\i~Qii~a~ oi~·~bs_. Q~f5 
·~~}l4pp:g_th~.~§~·-~~~~(i~ifc\~r1~l-~}1~t t!i~-K-~f;.~:h?:i.~~}flte_cftg N-Qa¢4~''91~iit~e1iaJC>r18·,· huti 
'Ell$.9 cqntain mui~es of T;;t]jpan rn.ein bers :an_d: 9t1lf3r.~: 

Whe the Americans bombed the city of Kandahar and the number of killed and wounded 
was ounting, it became necessary to add appropriate terms in light of the bombings. In 
Kan ahar there was no front line of battle since the U.S. forces contented themselves with 
inte se air strikes and wireless communication networks were used to transport the 
inj ed and evacuate families from homes that had been bombed. Thus, it was necessary to 
ado t appropriate codes for those situations. 
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Leaving Mghanistan 

Whel the U.S, invasion commenced in October of 2001 and 'the num her of people killed or 
injuld began to rise, and when the Emir of the Believers, the president of the Islamic 
Emi:ete of Mghanistan (Allah preserve him), decided to preserve the blood of civilian from 
the "lorst of the attacks, the order came for all Arab families to leave the country entirely. 
The defense strategy of the Islamic Emirate of Mghanistan changed and a guerilla war 
bega against the occupying crusader forces in the country. They did this in order to 
prev nt mass civilian casualties due to the intense air strikes in the cities. 

Sot e non-Mghan families began to leave Mghanistan and I personally oversaw all the 
fam · · es leaving Kandahar for Pakistani Baluchistan. There were many different families 
from all the Mghan provinces and each area had a specific exit route. All the Arab families 
were dispersed throughout Jalalabad, Herat, Khost, Kandahar, and other cities and ,ther.e 

~t~t;~b~~~:~~f~8!t~lf~~tt~~~lt{\~~:el~{!~~!~ii~·~~jj~tr~l~fl*~~f~1~iE~~a~~~:~q:r:~i11~vell 
... · .. ____ ..... ~:> .. ---···-··· ......................... Y................. ..... ... . .......... _,._ ..................... Y.................... ........ .. g .... ·. 
coUn Ty~yl-J.idb pro1t{p1)~:4-tl1~ '§Ji~ilclls to lll~l{k_,s'pecifiC, ~nttgellW;alpro0sioh~ fo~.the1ll. 
She· rh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth was not included in the list of families from Kandahar 
beca se his family was not with him; they were in Kuwait. 
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Bayat 

Bay tis an oath taken by a member in the introductory phase obligating him to hear and 
obey [the one to whom he has sworn] as long as the orders do not contradict Islamic 

Ther is no specific rite or ceremony to swear bayat. The swearer has only to extend his 
han to Sheikh Osama bin Laden and say a few words expressing his willing·ness to be 
obe ent and undertake migration and jihad for the sake of Allah. 

Ther is no one in Al-Qaeda whose mission it is to give speeches pushing people to swear 
baya- . I myself was one of the ones who worked with the Sheikh, was responsible for media 
prod ction, and attended Shura meetings with him but did not swear bayat to him. He 
neve· once spoke to me about swearing bayat because he knew me well and trl!-sted me. 
TheJ one day I swore bayat to him on my own without anyone pushing me to do so. 
Swe~ring bayat to the president of the Islamic Emirate of Afghanistan, the leader of the 
faith~, Mullah Omar was mandatory; whereas swearing bayat to Sheikh Osama bin 
Laden was not. 

The nited States tries to fabricate charges against innocent people, saying they swore 

::;l::::;~:;;:~::;;:~~;;~~;::n:~;~:.:::t~::·:~~=~::don a 
p~r~J~~B~t1~~ .~ -~C.;~;.Y7~W§_,t8:J?~§B.,.f\.l:fl?)Yftp.~1¥;~l~-~~--~C>~vv~.aJ;:p~t~~~--t9 ,$;he~:kh:()f311ll1~ _b1n 
bEidjJ.?-1 ~he ·-~~~~~~.~-fl~ :qQ,:,!? ~~B -~~~e "t;l;:}0I"4: Jd~ -~9t /':yen.lg~q~v 1f ph!Olikh Su..la,Im,an Abu 
Ghgyth• pe.fS.Ql1a1ly,S.»'Ql!e.})aya,t to $ileikh.Qsama b1n· L,11d~t~ or not. 
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Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghavth and the Shoe: Bomb Operation 

I per onally never spoke with Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth 'about the Shoe Bomb 
Oper tion. As I mentioned before on page two, Sheikh Sulai±nan Abu Ghayth was not a 
milit y man and had nothing to do with military operations~ lllso, as I mentioned on page 
sevj' , those tasked with giving statements to the media do not necessarily know all the 
det · s of an operations and are sometimes even unaware of the very existence of the 
oper tion. I do not recall ever seeing Sheikh Sulaiman Abu Ghayth with my brother Abdul­
Jabb r (Richard Reed, Allah preserve him). 
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S E C RE T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
HEADQUARTERS, JOINT TASK FORCE GUANTANAMO

U.S. NAVAL STATION, GUANTANAMO BAY, CUBA
APO AE 09360

JTF-GTMO-CDR 8 December 2006

MEMORANDUM FOR Commander, United States Southern Command, 3511 NW glst Avenue.
Miami ,  FL33172

SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

JTF-GTMO Detainee Assessment

1. (S/NF) Personal Information:

o JDIMSA{DRC Reference Name: Khalid Shaykh Muhammad
o Aliases and Current/True Name: Mukhtar al-Baluchi" The

Brain. Ashraf Refaat Nabith Hen. Khalid Abdul Wadud.
Salim Ali. Fahd Bin Abdallah Bin Khalid. Abdul Rahman
Abdullah Faqasi al-Ghamdi

o Place of Birth: Baluchistan" Pakistan (PK)
o Date of Birth: 14 April 1965
. Citizenship: Pakistan
o Internment Serial Number (ISN): US9KU-010024DP

2. (U//FOUO) Health: Detainee is in good health.

3. (S/NF) JTF-GTMO Assessment:

a. (S) Recommendation: JTF-GTMO recommends this detainee for Continued Detention
Under DoD Control (CD).

b. (S//NF) Executive Summary: Detainee is assessed to be a senior al-Qaida recruiter,
financier, and operational planner for al-Qaida's global terrorist network. Detainee was the
mastermind of the 11 September 200I terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center, the
Pentagon, and the hijacking of United Airlines flight 93 that crashed in Pennsylvania.

CLASSIFIED BY: MULTIPLE SOURCES
REASON: E.O. 12958, AS AMENDED, SECTION 1.4(C)
DECLASSIFY ON: 20311208
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S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

Detainee described himself as the head of al-Qaida's military committee.' Jtp-GtVtO has
determined this detainee to be:

o A HIGH risk, as he is likely to pose a threat to the US, its interests and allies.
o A MEDIUM threat from a detention perspective.
o Of HIGH intelligence value.

4. (S//NF) Account ofDetainee's Timeline:

The following section is based on a consolidation of several accounts from various
significant individuals in order to assemble a feasible timeline.

^. (S//NF) Prior Yistory: Detainee is a Pakistani who was raised in Kuwait (KU) during
his formative years.' Detainee attended an unidentified high school operated by the Kuwaiti
government.' Detainee wanted to be involved in jihad since the age of II or I2.o News from
local Kuwaiti television channels, local newspapers and magazines distributed by the Muslim
Brotherhood in Kuwait influenced detainee to join jihad. In 1982, detainee heard a speech
from Abdul Rasool Sayyaf,5 the leader of the mujahideen in Afghanistan (AF), who preached
jihad as a religious war between Muslims and non-Muslims. Shortly thereafter, at the age of
16, detainee joined the Muslim Brotherhood. Afterjoining the Muslim Brotherhood,
detainee became more dedicated, read more about religion and taught others about Islam in
order to recruit them into the Muslim Brotherhood. After graduation from high school in
1983 and upon the suggestion of his brother Zahid, detainee attended college in the US at
Chowan College in Murfreesboro, North Carolina (NC)." Detainee would later transfer to
North Carolina Agriculture and Technical State University in Greensboro, NC, and received
his Bachelor of Science (BS) degree in Mechanical Engineering in 1986.' After graduating
in 1986, detainee traveled to Peshawar, PK, due to the expiration of detainee's visa.

b. (S//NF) Recruitment and Travel: Detainee subsequently quit his membership in the
Muslim Brotherhood because they did not support violent jihad. Detainee traveled to
Afghanistan to join the Soviet jihadu like his brothers Zahid and Abid.e

' 010024 Profile al-Qaida Kingpin 28-Sep-2006' to-ltqrasqgs-oa
' tn-: t+iogogs-oeo to-ltqtes+gs-oe
5 Analyst Note: Abdul Rasool Sayyaf is the leader of the Afghan Ittihad-I-Islami.
' TD-314/68635-06'to-zutegax-oa
t to-:t+/oao:s-oo
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S E C RE T //NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal lnput and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

c. (S//NF) Training and Activities: Detainee attended the Sada training campto run by
Shaykh Abdallah Azzam.t I At the conclusion of his training in 1987, detainee worked for
themagazine "al-Bunyan al-Marsous," produced by Sayyaf s grorrp.t' In following years,
while fighting on the front lines, detainee worked for al-Bunyan as time permitted.'' [n late
1987 through 1988, detainee worked as a hydraulic engineer for a Japanese company named
Maruzen, which sent him to Japan to learn company management. A month later, detainee
returned to the mountains of Afghanistan where he dug caves and trenches.to Detainee also
repaired broken hydraulic drills on the front lines of Afghanistan. Four months later,
detainee traveled to Pakistan with his brother Abid to teach school.l5 After Abid's death,
detainee took over Abid's work at the Peshawar school. To solicit support for the school, in
1991 detainee and his brother-in-law, Abd al-Samad Din Muhammad, visited Sayyaf in
Afghanistan. Sayyaf agreed to pledge money, support, and land in support of the school.16
ln 1992, detainee received a Masters degree in Islamic Culture and History through
correspondence classes from Punjab University in Pakistan." ln 1993, detainee moved his
family to Qatar at the suggestion of the former minister of Islamic affairs of Qatar, Shaykh
Abdallah Bin Khalid Bin Hamad al-Thani, where he took a position as project engineer with
the Qatari Ministry of Electricity and Water. Detainee engaged in extensive international
travel during his tenure at the Qatari ministry until early 1996.

d. (S/A{F) In early 1996, detainee fled to Pakistan to avoid capture by US authorities for his
part in the 1993 World Trade Center bombing, for which he has been indicted.'n

n to-:t+/os+gs-oo
r0 Analyst Note: The Sada training camp was identified in the founding minutes of al-Qaida as an open camp from

which the best would be selected to join al-Qaida.
rr Analyst Note: Deceased Shaykh Abdallah Azzamwas Usama Bin Laden's spiritual mentor.
'' TD-314168635-06, Analyst Note: Fethi Boucetta, ISN US9AG-000718DP (AG-718) remarked that "al-Bunyan

al-Marsous" means "firm structure," and is anti-US and anti-Western; it was also one of the magazines that
motivated Algerian medical students to go to jihad. This magazine concentrated its effort on showing graphic
pictures of Muslims being oppressed and massacred in Afghanistan, Bosnia, Herzegovina, Republic of Chechnya,
and Kashmir. The magazine listed addresses and points of contacts of non-governmental organizations servicing

_- Afghanistan and Pakistan areas. For further information see IIR 6 034 ll82 03.
' '  TD-314t69710-06
to TD-314169710-06, Analyst Note: It is likely these caves and trenches were military preparations to support the

mujahideen.
tt TD-3 | 4 r 697 10-06, TD-3 r4l53936-06
tu TD-314169710-06, Analyst Note: Abd al-Samad Din Muhammad is detainee's cousin and brother-in-law and is

detained in Pakistan for his iihadist activities.
't TD-3 r 4/70058-06, TD-314i65485-06
tt The 9-1 I Commission Report 24-Jul-2003, p. 147;TD-314169710-06; TD-314 130259-02,
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S E C R E T / / NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SI-IBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

Detainee attempted to travel to Chechnya to join the mujahideen leader Ibn al-Khattable but
was unsuccessful. Detainee retumed to Karachi, PK, and then to Afghanistan where he
formed a working relationship with Usama Bin Laden (UBL)20 and actively joined the jihad
against the United States.2l It was during this time that detainee presented his idea to UBL
for what became the 11 September 2001 attacks." In 1999, detainee moved to Kandahar,
AF," and provided media facilitation and technical assistance to al-Qaida. In late 2000,
detainee became head of the al-Qaida Media Committee in Kandahar.'o Onthe morning of
the 11 September 2001 attacks, detainee escorted Ramzi Bin al-Shibh, ISN US9YM-
010013DP (YM-10013), to a home in Karachi, where they were informed that the attacks
were on television. With this news they celebrated the success of the mission.25 From that
moment forward, detainee was attempting to evaded capture. He met again with tlBL to
brace for an anticipated counterattack, and soon began to conceive a plot for an attack against
the Heathrow Airport in London, United Kingdom (UK).tu [n December 2001 detainee left
Afghanistan, and arranged safe exit from the battlefield for al-Qaida operatives with
potential.'' In December 2002, detainee stated that UBL made a written decree declaring
detainee as the al-Qaida Chief of External Operations.28

5. (S//NF) Capture Information:

Analyst Note: Detainee cornmented that his position allowed him to gain managerial and organizational
experience which later facilitated his success in planning the 9lll attacks.

re Analyst Note: Ibn Khattab, born in 1970, was a seasoned commander and experienced tactician in bomb making
and rough terrain combat who believed that the Russian states of Dagestan and Chechnya should be united as one
nation. He was reportedly aligned with Usama Bin Laden, Chechen Hamil Basayev, and several militant
organizations. Press reporting indicated that he was killed by poison on 25 April 2002. For further information
see http://www.66mi.arm)'.smil.mil/acelallsorc/trans/russ-chech/img35.html

'o The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Jul-2003,p. 149, Analyst Note: Detainee says he met UBL for the first time

^, when the Sayyaf group and UBL's Arab mujahideen group were next to each other along the front line.
" TD-314169710-06
" TD-314r36069-03
23 to-3t4130259-o2,TD-314125433-O2,TD-314169710-O6,Analyst Note: From 1996 to 2003, detainee'�s older

brother Zahid supported him. He also received support from "personal" donations from friendly mujahideen who
would provide him money. Reporting on the locAtions where KU-10024 and his family lived has conflicting
timelines. Detainee moved around from location to location quite frequently, both with and without his family.

to TD-3r4r69710-06
" tD-314138366-02, Analyst Note; Ramzi Bin al-Shibh is an al-Qaida operative who was originally destined for

the 9ll1 mission, but because he could not obtain a US visa, became a planner for the operation instead.
26 to3vr36o69-03
" to-3t4r36069-03
tt OLOO24 Moussaoui Testimony, p.2,para. 1, http://www.rcfp.org/moussaoui/pdf/DX-094l.pdf
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S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

^. (S/A{F) Pakistani Inter-Services Intelligence Directorate (ISID) captured detainee;
Pakistani fundamentalist, Ahmed Abdul Qadoos; al-Qaida's financial manager Mustafa al-
Hawsawi;2e and an unidentified Saudi on 1 March 2003. Detainee was immediately turned
over to US custody.3o

b. (S) Property Held: The following items are not held by JTF-GTMO but were reported
as pocket litter belonging to detainee:

o Casio wrist watch. Model F-91W31
. Ring32

c. (S) Transferred to JTF-GTMO: 4 September 2006

d. (S//NF) Reasons for Transfer to JTF-GTMO: Detainee was transferred to JTF-
GTMO to face prosecution for terrorist activities against the United States.

6. (S//NF) Detainee Threat:

a. (S) Assessment: Detainee is assessed to be a HIGH risk, as he is likely to pose a threat
to the US. its interests and allies.

b. (S/NF) Reasons for Continued Detention: Detainee is a senior operational planner,
recruiter and financier for al-Qaida's global terrorist network. Detainee was the mastermind
of the 11 September 2001 terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center and the Pentagon.
Detainee described himself as the head of al-Qaida's military committee. Detainee has
specifically stated he is the enemy of the United States.

o (S/A{F) Al-Qaida operations and plans: Detainee is one of al-Qaida's key
operational planners linked to a majority of al-Qaida's major international operations.

o (U) 1 I September 2001hijackings: 2,973 killed, 24 missing and presumed dead.
' (U) At a meeting in Tora Bora, arranged by deceased al-Qaida military
commander Mohammed Atef aka (Abu Hafs al-Masri), detainee presented UBL

2n 010016 Working Group on Arbitrary Detention Request for Response #41
'o IIR 2 227 0286 03
" PAKT-2003-900193.pdf, Analyst Note: The Casio model F-9lW watch is linked to al-Qaida and radical Islamic

terrorist improvised explosive devices. For further information refer to 000002 MFR 24-APR-2002, Casio Watch

^^ Electronic Analysis Report 19-Aug-2004, Casio Watches and Relationship to Detainees 20-Apr-2006.
" PAKT-2003-900 I 9 1.pdf
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S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

with his ideas for various terrorist operations, including his rendition of what
became the 11 September 2001 hijacker plot. UBI requested detainee to formally
join al-Qaida, which detainee stated he declined." In late 1998 or early 1999,
IIBL gave permission for detainee to proceed with the 11 September 2001
operation.3a At that time detainee accepted UBL's standing invitation to work
directly with al-Qaida.35
. (S/AIF) Sayf al-Adl remarked that Muhammad Atef arranged four cells to
transfer and exchange communication between the leader (Muhammad Atta) of
the hijackers and the base command. Detainee was in charge of the second cell in
Pakistan.'o

o (S/AIF) 1993 World Trade Center bombing: 6 killed, 1,042 injured. In 1991 or
1992, detainee assisted his nephew Ramzi Yousef with planning an attack in the US
on the World Trade Center. In the fall of 1992, detainee and Yousef had numerous
telephone conversations discussing the progress of the operation, and for which
Yousef sought additional funding. In 3 November 1992, detainee wired $660 USD
from Qatar to the bank of Yousef s co-conspirator, Mohammed Salameh.3T Detainee
was indicted for his role in the 1993 World Trade Center Bombing in January 1996.38
o (U) 1998 East Africa bombings: 257 kllled,4,085 injured. In late August 1998,
a foreign govemment sent a list of names of individuals who flew into Nairobi before
the al-Qaida attack on the US embassy in Nairobi. The CIA reportedly recognized
one of the passenger's names as an alias for detainee.3e
o (S/A{F) Detainee's involvement in al-Qaida's chemical and biological
development:

' (S/A{F) In August 2001, detainee had conversations with Muhammad Atef,
and learned that al-Qaida was pursuing the development of anthrax related
technologies to use in operations. Abu Harith al-Malaysi aka (Abu Haris) asked
detainee in the summer of 2001 to move crates containing biological laboratory
equipment from Karachi to Kandahar. This further convinced detainee of an al-

" The 9-1
'o The 9-1
" The 9-l

Commission Report 24-Ju1-2003, p. 149
Commission Report 24-Jul-2003, p. 149
Commission Report 24-Jul-2003, p. 150, 154.

" SA-RIY-040721-90007-61707, Analyst Note: This is a reference to communication nodes set in place to relay
messages between al-Qaida headquarters and the 9/l I cell members; one in Afghanistan: one in Pakistan, one in

_ Europe and one in the US.
" The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Jil-2003, p. 73 and p. 147; Analyst Note: There is no further information on

Mohammed Salameh.
" The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Ju1-2003,p.73
'n The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Jul-2003
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S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

Qaida effort to produce anthrax.a0 After his discussions with Muhammad Atef,
detainee said he assumed the special laboratory near Tamak Farm was related to
anthrax development efforts and the equipment he was asked to transfer from
Karachi to Kandahar, circaMay 2001, was for that laboratory.4l
. (S//I{F) Detainee was present in CNN videotapes showing al-Qaida's
chemical testing on dogs and was reportedly in regular consultations with noted
poison and explosives expert Abu Khabab al-Masri.a2
. (S/AIF) Immediately prior to the fall of Kandahar in late 2001, JI member
Yazid Sufaat stayed at detainee's home for six days. Yazid told detainee he was
developing anthrax for al-Qaida, and was happy in his work. Yazid was giving
biology lessons to two al-Qaida operatives, detained Abu Bakr al-Filistini aka
(Samir Hilmi al-Barq) and al-Hud al-Sudani.a3 When detainee queried Yazid
about the danger of his researcho Yazid indicated there was little to worry about
since he (Yazid), Bakr, and al-Hud all had anthrax vaccines. As al-Qaida was
leaving Afghanistan,Yazidplanned to reinstitute the anthrax program in
Pakistan.aa

o (S/AfF) Djerba Synagogue bombing in Tunisia: 19 killed, 15 injured. It is
assessed that detainee contributed to the 1l April 2002 attack on the Djerba
Synagogue in Tunisia. Investigators examining the perpetrator's (Nizar Nawar) cell
phone found that Nizar had called a number in Pakistan assigned to detainee just three
hours before the attack.as
o (S/n{F) In early September 2002, an undated letter was recovered as a result of a
raid in Karachi. Abd al-Rahim Ghulam Rabbani, ISN US9PK-001460DP (PK-1460),
an al-Qaida facilitator with close ties to detainee, provided an assessment of the
meaning of the letter written by detainee to Hamza al-Zubair (NFI); the letter

oo To-3t4160789-04, TD-314/19304-03, Analyst Note: Abu Hafs al-Masri aka (Muhammad Atef) was killed in
coalition air strikes in Afghanistan in November 2001 . Abu Harith is an al-Qaida and Jemaah Islamiya facilitator.
He is the son of JI religious emir Abu Bakir Bashir. For further information on Abu Harith please refer to DA
-DPM report dated 0519232D8C 05. Detainee assigned both PK-1460 and PK-1461 to move the crates.

ot TD-3r4r60789-04
ot OlO024 Arrested in Pakistan
a3 Analyst Note: Detainee's nephew, Ammar al-Baluchi stated that Abu Bakr was working on an anthrax project

with detainee. Before his work with detainee, Abu Bakr worked as a medic for the mujahideen brothers in
Karachi and added that Abu Bakr knew several al-Qaida members because of the nature of his work. Ammar
noted that Abu Bakr was well cormected in Karachi and, although this was not his primary role, could be called
upon if a brother needed housing assistance. For further information on Abu Bakr al-Filistini please refer to TD-
314/43889-05 and TD-314/24678-04. There is no further information on al-Hud al-Sudani.

oo TD-3t41t9304-03
ot TD-314n3122-03
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S E C RE T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

appeared to use code words for a possible poison attack. PK-1460 said detainee
spoke often of trying to acquire or make poisons and to use them in attacks.a6
o (S/A{F) Daniel Pearl murder: In early 2002, Wall Street Journal reporter Daniel
Pearl was abducted and murdered. Interviews with al-Qaida operative Sharif al-Masri
declared that Sayf al-Adl, a former al-Qaida military commander, said that Pearl was
transferred to detainee's custody; detainee was in charge of all al-Qaida activities in
Karachi at this time. Al-Adl counseled detainee, stating that it would not be wise to
murder Pearl. Al-Adl recommended that Pearl be returned back to one of the
previous groups who held him, or freed. Al-Adl indicated to Sharif al-Masri that both
detainee and al-Qaida chief financial officer, Shaykh Said al-Masri, disagreed with al-
Adl on this point. Pearl was then taken to the house of al-Qaida's finance chief in
Pakistan, Saud Memon, and murdered.aT
o (S/A{F) Richard Reid's failed shoe bomb plotof 22 December 2001: Detainee's
nephew and fellow al-Qaida facilitator Ali Abd al-Aziz aka (Ammar al-Baluchi), ISN
US9PK-010018DP (PK-10018), stated that the shoe bomber, Richard Reid, was
offered to detainee as an operative who was already prepared with the proper travel
documents.a8 Detainee stated that he had instructed Reid to shave his beard prior to
boarding the airplane and to detonate the bomb inside the airplane bathroom.
Detainee added that Reid did not do this because he was irresponsible.ae

o (S/A{F) Detainee had numerous plots and plans for operations targeting the US, its
allies, and its interests world-wide.

o (S/AID The Bojinka plot: Bojinka called for the simultaneous downing of 12
American airliners over the Pacific Ocean. Ramzi Yousef enlisted several co-
conspirators from the 1993 World Trade Center bombing to help with this plot. The
plot was funded by Abdullah Azzam and UBL's Afghan jihad services directorate in
Pakistan.so
o (U) Detainee planned three other plots in 1994, alongwith Ramzi Yousef.
Detainee planned two separate assassination plots, one against Pope John Paul II and
the other against President Clinton, during their respective trips to the Philippines and
bombings of US-bound cargo carriers.''

ou TD-314t39649-02
ai fO3tql5?,636-04, Analyst Note: British national Omar Sheikh is on death row for the kidnapping and killing of

American.iournalist Daniel Pearl in 2001.
ot to-gt+l to89l-06
on To3tqr632rr-04
s0 tO3rul6Zg28-03, The 9-l I Commission Report 24-Jul-2003,p. 73, DIA Special Analysis Evolution of the

Transnational Terrorist Threat 19 Nov 2004
tt DIA Special Analysis Evolution of the Transnational Terrorist Threat 19 Nov 2004
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o (U) During the summer of 2001, detainee approached UBL with proposS]s for
other attacks on targets in Thailand, Singapore, Indonesia and the Maldives.'"
o (S/AfF) Panama Canal: Detainee claimed he tasked US citizen and al-Qaida
operative Jafar al-Tayar aka (Adnan el Shukrijumah) to conduct surveillance on the
Panama Canal as part of an ev_e^ntual plan to detonate one or two explosive-laden
ships transiting the waterway." Detainee said Jafar al-Tayar was given a more
general tasking in 2001 of spotting and conducting surveillance of potential targets
across the US.5a
o (S) Remote-controlled firing devices disguised in Sega game cartridges:
Detainee discussed remote-controlled firing devices (RCFDS) which were found
during raids on Karachi in September 2002. These RCFDS were built inside black
Sega video.g*. cassette cartridges to protect the RCFDS and to make them appear
rnnocuous.--
o (S/AfD Heathrow Airport, London: Detainee provided information on the
operatives he chose to participate in the attack on Heathrow Airport in London.
There were two primary cells for the attack: the United Kingdom based cell, tasked to
obtain pilot training from a commercial flight school in Kenya; and a Saudi Arabia-
based cell, tasked to identify martyr candidates to assist in the aviation attack.56

o (S/A{F) Detainee was a key constituent in the joining of al-Qaida and JI through JI
leader, Riduan Bin Isomuddin aka (Hambali), ISN US9ID-010019 (ID-l0019), which
contributed to the facilitation of planning of al-Qaida operations in Southeast Asia:

o (S/AID In 1996, detainee invited Hambali to Afghanistan to meet with LIBL.
Hambali spent three or four days with UBL and, at the conclusion of their meetings,
UBL indicated that al-Qaida and Hambali's organization, JI, unofficially agreed to
work together on targets of mutual interest.)'
o (U) In 1998, JI spiritual leader, Abu Bakr Bashir, formally accepted UBL's offer
to ally JI with al-Qaida. Hambali met with detainee in Karachi to arrange for JI
members to train at al-Qaida camps in Afghanistan.s8

t'The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Jul-2003, p. 150 (Ch. 5, Footnote l8)
t'DIA JITF-CT Analytical Product, 06 June 2003
to ro34144238-04
tt TD-314152106-04, Analyst Note: This information has been confrrmed by PK-001460.
tu tl-3 t 4/t 8750-03, TD-3 14 135496-03
t ' to4urt7276-03
tt The 9-11 Commission Report 24-Jul-2003,p. 151. Ch. 5, Footnote 22, Analyst Note: At this time, al-Qaida

started to fund Jemaah Islamiya; Jemaah Islamiya would perform casing activities and locate bomb-making
materials while al-Qaida would underwrite operations, provide bomb-making expertise, and deliver suicide
operatives.
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o (S/A{F) In 1999, detainee provided money and instructions to Hambali to look at
options for attacking the US Embassy in Jakarta, Indonesia (ID).tn
o (S/A{F) In January or February 2002, detainee said he aided Hambali's exit from
Afghanistan by acquiring a legitimate Indonesian passport in which Hambali's photo
was substituted.60
o (C) Detainee arranged for a courier to deliver funds from al-Qaida to JI leaders in
Indonesia to conduct three terrorist bomb attacks: the 2002 Bali bombings; the 2003
Marriott hotel bombing in Jakarta; and, the 2004 attack on the Australian Embassy in
Jakarta.6l

. (S/A{F) In February 2002, JI leaders met in Bangkok, Thailand (TH), to
organize attacks against American interests in the region. The attacks were to be
conducted using approximately $86,000 USD given to JI from al-Qaida for its
operations, including the 2002 Bali bombing, and the 5 August 2003 J.W.
Marriott hotel bombing in Jakarta.62
' (S/A{F) Before May 2003, detainee gave Hambali approximately $130,000
USD to deliver to JI; $100,000 USD was given as a sign of congratulations for the
success of the Bali bombings, and the additional $30,000 USD was provided to
fund future operations.

o (U) Manila portion of 1 1 September 2001: Detainee split the 1 1 September 2001
operation into two parts to have a greater effect. The second operation involved a
smaller version of the Bojinka plot: including hijacking US-flagged commercial
airlines flyrtrg Pacific routes and exploding the aircraft in mid-air rather than flying
the aircraft into targets. In spring 2000, UBL cancelled the East Asia portion of the
operation.63

. (S/AIF) Detainee instructed 11 September 2001hijacker Nawaf al-Hazmi and
operatives Walid Bin Attash andZohair Mohammed Said aka (Abu Bara al-
Taizi),ISN US9YM-000569DP (YM-569), on Western culture and travel in
preparation for operations. 6a

. (S/A{F) Approximately two months prior to 11 September 2001, detainee
took several UBL bodyguards including YM-569; Abd al-Rahman Shalbi Isa
Uwaydha, ISN US9SA-000042DP (SA-0a2); Abd al-Malik Abd al-Wahab, ISN
US9YM-000037DP (YM-037); and volunteers Abu Hafs al-Kuwaiti and Abu

tn TD-314r39810-03
uo To-314/3s 496-03
u ' I IR2 227 026r  06
u'rrr2 248 oorg 04
ut O1OO24 Moussaoui Testimony, page 5, paragraph 7, http://www.rcfo.org/moussaoui/pdf/DX-094l.pdf
uo The 9-l l Commission Report 24-Jul-2003,p. 157
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Musab al-Hashidi, to Karaclri to teach them English and American culture in
preparation for the attacks.o)

o (S/A{F) US and Israeli embassies in Manila: In August 2001, detainee gave
operative Mohammad Mansour Jabarah $10,000 USD and sent him to Manila,
Philippines (RP), to bomb US and Israeli embassies. Jabarah embarked on his
mission one day before the 11 September 2001 attacks. It was to be a joint operation,
with al-Qaida supplying the suicide bombers and the funding, and JI purchasing the
explosives and making the plans.66

. (U) Plots in the US:
o (S/A{F) Detainee stated that as an enemy of the US, he thought about the US
policies with which he disagreed and how he could change them. Detainee's plan
was to make US citizens suffer, especially economically, which would put pressure
on the US govemment to change its policies. Targeting priorities were determined by
initially assessing those that would have the greatest economic impact, and secondly
which would awaken people politically.6T
o (S/AIF) Detainee discussed his involvement in the 11 September 2001 attacks
with Abu Zubaydah,IsN US9GZ-010016DP (GZ-10016). When Abu Zubaydah
asked whether detainee had any other operations ready, detainee replied that the 11
September 2001 attacks had been his dream and life's work. Detainee noted that
because he did not hit the White House during the 11 September 2001 attacks, as
intended, that he would somehow try to attack the White House again one day, due to
its sprbolic value to America.6s
o (U) Detainee told his interrogators that al-Qaida had planned to create a "nuclear

hell storm" in America.6e
o (S/A{F) Jewish targets in New York: In early 2001, at UBL's direction, detainee
sent al-Qaida operative Issa al-Britani to surveil potential economic and o'Jewish"

targets in New York City.To
o (S/A{F) Tallest building in California: In late 200I, detainee directed a plan for a
commercial airplane to be hijacked and flown into the "tallest building in California,"
using at least two separate shoe bombs to gain access to the cockpit. "

o' TD-314123432-04,TD-314123505-04, Analyst Note: This was training for the SE Asia portion of the planes plot.
ou FBIS EUP20030 I 2 4000492 23 -Jan-2003
u' TD-314136069-03
u* rD3r4r28434-02
un Al-qaida warning - WorldnetDaily.com l7-Sep-06, Al-Qaida warns Muslims: Time to get out of U.S. Afghan

terror commander hints at big attack on N.Y. and l(ashington.
'_o.TD-314144238-04, Analyst Note: This was possibly part of the 9/l I operation.
" http://www.in.hanscom.af.smil.miVdintpro/AugusL02/DlSUM-26Aug02.htrnl (ESC-IN DISUM 26-Aug-2002),

TD-314/36069-03
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o (U) CIA and FBI headquarters and nuclear power plants: Other potential targets
detainee considered were CIA and FBI headquarters, nuclear power plants in the US,
and the tallest buildings in the state of Washington.''
o (S/AfF) Hacking into bank computers in US: Detainee deployed Ali Saleh
Mohamed Kahlah al-Mari, ISN US9QA-010010DP (QA-10010), to travel to the US
as an al-Qaida sleeper agent with the mission to explore possibilities for hacking into
main frame computers of US banks."
o (U) Follow-on attacks in the US: Detainee intended for al-Qaida operative
Zacanas Moussaoui (in US custody) to participate in a follow-on attack in the US,
unrelated to the 11 September 2001 attacks.Ta
o (S) Cargo airplane hijackings: In April 2002, detainee tasked al-Qaida operative
Iyman Faris aka (Faris Iyam) aka (Lyman Faris), to provide a complete study on the
procedure for entering cargo areas of airports. Detainee planned to hijack cargo
planes and simultaneously fly those planes into several airport terminals across the
US., '
o (S/AIF) Brooklyn Bridge: Detainee also tasked Faris to destroy the Brooklyn
Bridge by cutting the suspension cables,76
o (S/A{F) Natural gas explosion in Chicago: In early 2002, Abu Zubaydah sent
Binyam Ahmed Mohammed, ISN US9ET-001458DP (ET-1458), and operative Jose
Padilla (in US custody) to detainee to discuss future operations in the US." Detainee
directed Padilla to travel to Chicago, Illinois, rent an apartment, and initiate a natural
gas explosion to cause the building to collapse. Detainee told ET-1458 to join Padilla
in Chicago on this mission.Ts Detainee also directed Padilla to study the feasibility of
an op..uiion to set fire to a hotel or gas station in the US.7e

' (S/A{F) Ammar al-Baluchi reported that ET-1458 and Padilla stayed in the
Karachi guesthouse for approximately one week, during which time Ammar saw
ET1458 and Padilla conversins with detainee. Ammar claimed that even after

'' The 9-l I Commission Report 24-Jul-2003,p. 154
" TO-3t41t6750-03, Analyst Note: Ali Saleh al-Mari was taken into custody on l8 December 2001 and is being

held as an enemy combatant in Charleston, South Carolina.
'o 010024 Moussaoui Testimony, pages 1 and2, paragraphs 1 and 4 http://www.rcfu.org/moussaoui/pdf/DX-

__ 094l .pdf
" TRRS-04-12-05 18, Analyst Note: Faris was an Ohio-based HAZMAT truck driver who had previously worked

_- with airplane cargo a few years prior.
'' http://acic.north-inscom.armv.smil.mil/Products/ATS/ats_05031 1a.asp
" TD-3r415r751-02
78 tO-3t+/38760-02,Analyst Note: Padilla was arrested by US authorities as he anived in Chicago on 8 May 2002.
tn DIA JITF-CT Analytical Product: US debriefing of senior al-Qaida operative describes planning against bridges

and gas stations in the US.

t 2

s E c R E T // NOFORN I I 20311208

Case 1:98-cr-01023-LAK   Document 1547-1    Filed 03/16/14   Page 26 of 59

Peter
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



S E C RE T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SUBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

Padilla's arrest and association with a "dirty bomb" plot in the media, he did not
discuss the matter with detainee.sO

o (S/A{F) Detainee was designated by UBL as the al-Qaida Chief of Extemal Military
Operations. Detainee was also in charge of propaganda and facilitation for the al-Qaida
network.

o (S/AfD Senior al-Qaida operative Abu Zubair al-Haili stated that detainee was in
charge of operational planning and execution for operations external to Afghanistan.8l
UBL placed detainee in charge of the al-Qaida Media Committee, as of October
2000.0'

. (U) In 1997 and the first half of 1998, detainee admits to traveling frequently
between Pakistan and Afghanistan, visiting UBL, and cultivating friendships with
his lieutenants, Mohammed Atef and Sayf al-Adl, assisting them with computer
and media projects.83
. (S/A{F) Ramzi Bin al-Shibh stated that during his second trip to Afghanistan
in February 200I, he learned that detainee was responsible for exporting al-Qaida
related media from Afghanistan, as part of the al-Qaida media committee.
Detainee further told al-Shibh that after al-Qaida left Afghanistan in December
2001, al-Qaida used a new approach and started distributing its messages on al-
Jazeeta.sa

o (S/A{F) When Afghanistan fell to coalition forces in December 2001, detainee
stated he was put in charge of evacuating the families during the coalition
bombardment of Afghanistan.8s According to Sayf al-Adl, Abu Mohammed
requested a meeting. The meeting was held on the Saturday after Muhammad Atef s
death, probably 17 November 200I, to select a new Amir, and to make decisions on
the evacuation the families. Shaykh Said al-Masri and detainee supported the effort
to evacuate the women outside of Afghanistan and took the necessary steps to achieve
the objective.s6

to TD-3 14 r 12265 -04, TD-3 l41059 l 5-03
tt TD-3r413gl3o-02
tt 010024 Moussaoui Testimony, pages I and 2, paragraphs I and 4, http://www.rcfp.org/moussaoui/odf,{DX-

0941.pdf
t' The 9-1 1 Commission Report 24-Jul-2003, p. 149
to TD-3r4r39i77-02
85 to-3t+/35339-03
tu 

6ISe; FBI FISA DTG 11-SEP-06, SA-RIY-040721-90007-61707, Analyst Note: Sheikh Sa'id al-Masri is al-
Qaida's chief financial officer. According to FBI FISA reporting, al-Masri, who has been located in Pakistan
since at least2002, has taken on some additional responsibilities to his role within in al-Qaida. In addition to his
position as the senior financial officer for al-Qaeda, Sheikh Sa'id is acting as the communications conduit to al-
Qaeda deputy leader Ayman al-Zawahiri and possibly UBL as well. Sheikh Sa'id has also assumed some
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o (S/A{F) In early 2002, detainee gave Sayfullah Paracha, ISN US9PK-001094DP
(PK-1094), between $500,000 and $600,000 USD for "safekeeping." Detainee stated
six months earlier he had asked PK-1094 to research offshore companies to hold al-
Qaida's funds.87

o (S/A{F) Detainee comes from a long line of Islamic extremists.
o (S/AfF) Detainee's three brothers: Zahid Shaykh Muhammad aka (Abu Hafs), the
director of the Kuwaiti Lajnat ul-Dawa88 organization in Quetta, PK; Abid Shaykh
Muhammad; and Aaref Shaykh Muhammad.8e His older brother Abid supported the
anti-Soviet jihad by fighting in Afghanistan, where he was killed. This significantly
affected and influenced detainee to support jihad. His other older brother, Zahid, was
an active supporter of various humanitarian assistance programs in Afghanistan, and
helped establish the Muslim Brotherhood in Kuwait.e0
o (S/A{F) Detainee's six cousins: Detained Ramzi Yousef, captured for his role in
the 1993 World Trade Center bombing; detained Abd al-Samad; Abd al-Karim aka
(Abu Musab al-Baluchi); Abd al-Mun'im aka (Abu Khalid al-Baluchi); Hashim Abd
al-Aziz aka (Shabir); and detained Ammar al-Baluchi. Abu Musab and Abu Khalid
respectively, handle some of the most sensitive logistic and administrative matters for
al-Qaida operatives based in or transiting to Pakistan. Ammar al-Baluchi played a
key role as financial facilitator for detainee's operations.er

facilitation duties, previously carried out by other now-detained or deceased senior al-Qaeda leaders, and provides
managerial duties for the senior leadership.

t' TD-3r4r4r195-04
88 Analyst Note: Lajnat ul-Dawa is a Tier 3 Terrorist Support Entity (TSE). A Tier 3 TSE has available resources

and is in a position to provide frnancial support to terrorist organizations willing to attack US persons or interests,
or provide witting operational support to Tier 3 terrorist groups. Lajnat ul-Dawa al-Islamiya, or Islamic
Missionary Commission, is the largest non-govemment organization (NGO) network for Afghan refugees and run
by rich Kuwaitis. Otherwise known as the Islamic Call Committee, LDI was a subsidiary of the Kuwait-based
NGO, Social Reform Society. The LDI has been involved in Afghanistan since the early 1980s, and had
supported the training camps and extremists there for rnany years. For further information see TD-314125433-02.

tn TD-3r4r4s3ri-02
to TD-3r4r70274-06
tt USAREUR Current Threat Report 5-Feb-2003

t 4

S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

Case 1:98-cr-01023-LAK   Document 1547-1    Filed 03/16/14   Page 28 of 59

Peter
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



S E C R E T // NOFORN I I 2O3II2O8

JTF-GTMO-CDR
SIIBJECT: Combatant Status Review Tribunal Input and Recommendation for Continued
Detention Under DoD Control (CD) for Guantanamo Detainee, ISN: US9KU-010024DP (S)

c. (U//FOUO) Detainee's Conduct: Detainee detention threat level is assessed as
MEDII-IM based on a DoD initial 90-dav observation.

Commandins

1 5

s E c R E T // NOFORN I I 20311208

Case 1:98-cr-01023-LAK   Document 1547-1    Filed 03/16/14   Page 29 of 59

Peter
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



UNCLASSIFIED

Verbatim Transcript of Combatant Status Review Tribunal Hearin for IS11 10024

OPENING

REPORTER: On the record

RECORDER: All rise.

PRESIDENT: Remain seated and come to order. Go ahead, Recorder.

RECORDER: This Tribunal is being conducted at 1328 March 10, 2007 on board U.S. Naval
Base Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. The following personnel are present:
Captain [REDACTED], United States Navy, President
Lieutenant Colonel [REDACTED], United States Air Force, Member
Lieutenant Colonel [REDACTED], United States Marine Corps, Member
Lieutenant Colonel [REDACTED], United States Air Force, Personal
Representative
Language Analysis [REDACTED]
Gunnery Sergeant [REDACTED], United States Marine Corps, Reporter
Lieutenant Colonel [REDACTED], United States Army, Recorder
Captain [REDACTED] is the Judge Advocate member of the Tribunal.

OATH SESSION 1

RECORDER: All Rise.

PRESIDENT: The Recorder will be sworn. Do you, Lieutenant Colonel [REDACTED]
solemnly swear that you will faithfully perform the duties as Recorder assigned in
this Tribunal so help you God?

RECORDER: I do.

PRESIDENT: The Reporter will now be sworn. The Recorder will administer the oath.

RECORDER: Do you Gunnery Sergeant [DELETED] swear or affirm that you will faithfully
discharge your duties as Reporter assigned in this Tribunal so help you God?

REPORTER: I do.

PRESIDENT: The Translator will be sworn.

1SN X 10024
sure (3)
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RECORDER:

TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

Do you swear or affirm that you will faithfully perform the duties of Translator in
the case now in hearing so help you God?

I do.

We will take a brief recess now in order in to bring Detainee into the room.
Recorder note the date and time.

The time is 1:30 p hours on 10 March 2007. This Tribunal is in now in recess.
[The Tribunal recessed at 1330, 10 March 2007. The members withdrew from the
hearing room.]

CONVENING AUTHORITY

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT.

All Rise.
[The Tribunal reconvened and the members entered the room at 1334, 10 March
2007.]

This hearing will come to order. Please be seated.

Before we begin, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, I understand you speak and
understand English. Is that correct?

[Detainee nods his head in affirmative].

Alright. Are you comfortable in continuing in English or would you like
everything translated in Arabic?

Everything in English but if I have a problem the linguist will help me.

We will proceed in English. If you indicate to me that you would like something
translated we will go ahead and do that. Alright?

This Tribunal is convened by order of the Director, Combatant Status Review
Tribunals under the provisions of his Order of 22 February 2007.

This Tribunal will determine whether Khalid Sheikh Muhammad meets the
criteria to be designated as an enemy combatant against the United States or its
coalition partners or otherwise meets the criteria to be designated as an enemy
combatant.

OATH SESSION 2

PRESIDENT: The members of this Tribunal shall now be sworn. All rise.

#10024
s ..re (")
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RECORDER: Do you swear or affirm that you will faithfully perform your duties as a member

of this Tribunal; that you will impartially examine and inquire into the matter now

before you according to your conscience, and the laws and regulations provided;

that you will make such findings of fact and conclusions as are supported by the

evidence presented; that in determining those facts, you will use your professional

knowledge, best judgment, and common sense; and that you will make such

findings as are appropriate according to the best of your understanding of the

rules, regulations, and laws governing this proceeding, and guided by your

concept ofjustice so help you God?

TRIBUNAL: I do.

PRESIDENT: The Recorder will now administer the oath to the Personal Representative.

RECORDER: Do you swear or affirm that you will faithfully perform the duties of Personal
Representative in this. Tribunal so help you God?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: I do.

PRESIDENT: Please be seated.

PRESIDENT: fhe Recorder, Reporter, and Translator have previously been sworn.

EXPLANATION OF PROCEEDINGS

PRESIDENT: Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you are hereby advised that the following applies

during this hearing:

PRESIDENT: You may be present at all open sessions of the Tribunal . However, i f you become
disorderly , you will be removed from the hearing , and the Tribunal will continue
to hear evidence in your absence.

PRESIDENT: You may not be compelled to testify at this Tribunal . However, you may testify if
you wish to do so. Your testimony can be under oath or unsworn.

PRESIDENT: You may have the assistance of a Personal Representative at the hearing. Your
assigned Personal Representative is present.

PRESIDENT: You may present evidence to this Tribunal, including the testimony of witnesses

who are reasonably available and whose testimony is relevant to this hearing.

You may question witnesses testifying at the Tribunal.

L_N #10024
e(3)
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PRESIDENT: You may examine documents or statements offered into evidence other than
classified information. However, certain documents may be partially masked for
security reasons.

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, do you understand this process?

Yes. If I have question can I ask you?

Yes, you may.

About the testimony which I ask about the witnesses.

Yes, I'm going to address the witnesses shortly. So, ityou will bear with us I will
take that up in a few moments.

Okay.

Do you have any questions concerning the Tribunal process?

Okay by me.

PRESENTATION OF UNCLASSIFIED INFORMATION

PRESIDENT: Personal. Representative, please provide the Tribunal with the Detainee Election
Form.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE:I am handing the Tribunal the Detainee Election Form, which was previously

marked as Exhibit D-a.

PRESIDENT: Aright, the Tribunal has received Exhibit Da that indicates the Detainee wants to
participate in the Tribunal and wants the assistance of the Personal
Representative.

RECORDER PRESENTS UNCLASSIFIED

PRESIDENT: Recorder, please provide the Tribunal with the unclassified evidence.

RECORDER: I am handing the Tribunal what has previously been marked as Exhibit R-1, the
unclassified summary of the evidence that relates to this Detainee's status as an
enemy combatant. A translated copy of this exhibit was provided to the Personal

ISN #10024
Enclosure (;)
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Representative in advance of this hearing for presentation to the Detainee. In
addition, I am handing to the Tribunal the following unclassified exhibits, marked
as Exhibit R-2. Copies of these Exhibits have previously been provided to the
Personal Representative. [Documents presented to Tribunal]

PRESIDENT: Recorder, please read the unclassified summary of evidence for the record. But
before you proceed, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, let me remind you that you must
not comment on this evidence at this time. You will be provided with an
opportunity shortly to provide any comments that you would like. Recorder,
please proceed.

RECORDER: The following facts support the determination that the Detainee is an enemy
combatant:

Paragraph a. On the morning of 11 September 2001, four airliners traveling over the United States
were hijacked. The flights hijacked were: American Airlines Flight II, United Airlines Flight 175,
American Airlines flight 77, and United Airlines Flight 93. At approximately 8:46 a.m., American
Airlines Flight 11 crashed into the North Tower of the World Trade Center, resulting in the collapse of
the tower at approximately 10:25 a.m. At approximately 9:05 a.., United Airlines Flight 175 crashed
into the South Tower of the World Trade Center, resulting in the collapse of the tower at
approximately 9:55 a.m. At approximately 9:37 a.m., American Airlines Flight 77 crashed into the
southwest side of the Pentagon in Arlington, Virginia. At approximately 1.0:03 a.m., United Airlines
flight 93 crashed in Stoney Creek Township, Pennsylvania. These crashes and subsequent damage to
the World Trade Center and the Pentagon resulted in the deaths of 2,972 persons in New York,
Virginia, and Pennsylvania.

Paragraph b. The Detainee served as the head of the a1 Qaida military committee and was Usaa bin
Laden's principal al Qaida operative who directed the 11 September 2001 attacks in the United States.

Paragraph c. In an interview with an al Jazeera reporter in June 2002, the Detainee stated he was the
head of the al Qaida military committee.

Paragraph d. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained information
about the four airplanes hijacked on 11 September 2001 including code names, airline company, flight
number, target, pilot name and background information, and names of the hijackers.

Paragraph e. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained photographs
of 19 individuals identified as the 11 September 2001 hijackers.
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Paragraph f. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a document
that listed the pilot license fees for Mohammad Atta and biographies for some of the 11 September
2001 hijackers.

Paragraph g. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained images of
passports and an image of Mohammad Atta.

Paragraph h. A computer bard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained transcripts of
chat sessions belonging to at least one of the 11 September 2001 hijackers.

Paragraph i. The Detainee directed an individual to travel to the United States to case targets for a
second wave of attacks.

Paragraph j. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained three letters
from Usama bin Laden.

Paragraph k. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained spreadsheets
that describe money assistance to families of known al Qaida members.

Paragraph 1. The Detainee's name was on a list in a computer seized in connection with a threat to
United States airlines, United States embassies and the Pope.

Paragraph m. The Detainee wrote the hojinka plat, the airline bomb plot which was later found on his
nephew Ramzi Yousefs computer.

Paragraph n. The hojinka plot is also known as the Manila air investigation.

Paragraph o. The Manila air investigation uncovered the Detainee conspired with others to plant
explosive devices aboard American jetliners while those aircraft were scheduled to be airborne and
loaded with passengers on their way to the United States.

Paragraph p. The Detainee was in charge of and funded an attack against United States military vessels
heading to the port of Djibouti.

Paragraph q. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a letter to the
United Arab Emirates threatening attack if their government continued to help the United States.

Paragraph r. During the capture of the Detainee, information used exclusively by al Qaida operational
managers to communicate with operatives was found.

Paragraph s. The Detainee received funds from Kuwaiti^baaed Islamic extremist groups and delivered
the funds to al Qaida members.
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Paragraph t. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a document
that summarized operational procedures and training requirements of an aI Qaida cell.

Paragraph u. A computer hard drive seized during the capture of the Detainee contained a list ofkilled
and wounded aI Qaida martyrs.

And lastly, Paragraph v. Passport photographs of al Qaida operatives were seized during the capture of
the Detainee.

RECORDER: Sir, this concludes the summary of unclassified evidence.

PRESIDENT: Very well.

PRESIDENT: Personal Representative, does the Detainee have any evidence to present to this
Tribunal?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes, sir. I a handing to the Tribunal the following unclassified exhibits

marked as Exhibits D-b through D-d. Copies of these exhibits have been
previously provided to the Recorder. [Documents presented to Tribunal]

PRESIDENT: Exhibit D-b appears to be a statement that the Detainee has provided.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes, Sir.

PRESIDENT: Alright. And Exhibit D-c contains hand written notes that appear to be Arabic and
English as well as the typed version of that. Is that correct?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTKI1VE: Yes, Sir.

PRESIDENT: Alright. And D-d is a written statement regarding alleged abuse or treatment that
the Detainee received.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Yes, Sir.

PRESIDENT: Alright. We will go into those shortly.
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PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you may now make an oral statement to the Tribunal,
and you have the assistance of your Personal Representative in doing so. Do you
wish to make an oral statement to this Tribunal?

He will start; the Personal Representative; PR will read then later I will comment.

Very well, you may proceed.

Sir, would you hold one moment?

Yes.

Ah, before the Detainee makes a statement, ah, I'd like to ah.

Question of the oath?

Ah, no sir.

Concerning classified evidence.

Very well.

Do you have any further evidence to present at this time, Recorder?

Mr. President, I have no further unclassified evidence for the Tribunal but I
respectfully request a closed Tribunal session at an appropriate time to present
classified evidence relevant to this Detainee's status as an enemy combatant.

Very well, your request for a closed session is granted and will be taken up in due
course.

You may proceed, PR.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: The Detainee responds to the unclassified summary of evidence with the

following key points.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE : Some paragraphs under paragraph number 3, lead sentence are not related to

the context or meaning of the aforementioned lead sentence . For example,
paragraph 3a is only information from news or a historical account of events
orl II September 2001, and note with no specific linkage being m < ie in this
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paragraph to me or the definition of Enemy Combatant. As another example,
sub-paragraph 3-n makes no linkage to me or to the definition of l 'nemy
Combatant."

DETAINEE: Are they following along?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Ah, they they have that in front of them for reference.

PRESIDENT: Yes.

DETAINEE: Okay.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE : Second main point, "There are two false statements in the Summary of

Evidence. Sub-paragraph 3-c is false . I never stated to the Al 3azeera reporter
that I was the head of the al Qaida military committee. Also, sub-paragraph 3-s is
false. I did not receive any funds from Kuwait."

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Point number 3. "There is an unfair ` stacking of evidence' in the way the

Summary of Evidence is structured. In other words , there are several sub-
paragraphs under parent-paragraph 3 which should be combined into one sub-
paragraph to avoid creating the false perception that there are more allegations or
statements against me specifically than there actually are. For example, sub-
paragraphs 3-n through 3-o, which pertain to the bojinka plot should be
combined into one paragraph , as should paragraphs 3-a through 3-h, which
pertain to 9/11."

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Lastly, my name is misspelled in the Summary of Evidence. It should be S-h-

a-i-k-h or S-h-c-i-k-h, but not S-h-a-y-k-h, as it is in the subject line.

PRESIDENT: Would you like to add anything to that, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Final statement.

DETAINEE:: No. I just want to ask about witnesses.

PRESIDENT: Okay, ab, let's finish with these then I will get to the witnesses.
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DETAINEE: Okay.

PRFSIDI NI: Try to keep it in order.

PRESIDENT: You want to continue, PR? Do you have have another statement?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: That concludes this Detainee's response to the, ah, unclassified summary of

evidence, sir.

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

RECORDER:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

Oh.

CALLING OF WITNESSES

We will now allow for the calling of witnesses. All witnesses called before this
Tribunal may be questioned by the Detainee if present, the Petsonal
Representative, the Recorder, and the Tribunal Members.

Does the Recorder have any witnesses to present?

No, sir.

Alright.

From the Detainee Election Form and I was informed earlier that the Detainee
requested the presence of two witnesses to testify here today. Razi bin aI-Shibh
and Mustafa Hawsawi. The Detainee believes the witnesses can provide
testimony related to the Detainee's actions specified in the unclassified summary
of the evidence.

I have had the opportunity to review the request for witnesses and I have made
some findings and Fm going to place them on the record now and when 1
conclude that, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you may respond to that if you'd like.

First the request for Ramzi bin ahShib, the proffer of the testimony from the
Detainee was that Ramzi is alleged to have been present during the al Jazeera
interview in June 2002 during which it is said the Detainee claimed to be head of
al Qaida Military Committee. The Detainee claims he never stated that, to be the
head of the Military Committee, during the interview and states that Razi, if
called, can confirm this.

This witness is not relevant in the President's view for the following reasons. In
the totality of the circumstances and given the nature and quality of the other
unclassified evidence, the Detainee's alleged statements as reported in al Jaz_eera
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are of limited value and negligible relevancy to the issue of combatant status. As
such, any corroboration or contradiction by the proffered witness is not relevant.
The creditability determinations with regard to R-2, which is the al Jazeera article,
can be made by the Tribunal without the proffered testimony. As such, the
Detainee's request for the production of that witness is denied.

PRESIDENT: As to the request for Mustafa Hawsawi, ah, it is proffered that Hawsawi, if called,
could testify that the computer/hard drive referenced in the unclassified summary
was not this Detainee's property and that the place of the Detainee's capture was
not the house of the Detainee. In the President's view this testimony is not
relevant to the issues regarding the Detainee's capture or his combatant status for
the following reasons.

PRESIDENT: Whether the Detainee had actual legal title or ownership of the computer/hard
drive or the house where the capture took place is irrelevant to the determination
of the Detainee's status as an enemy combatant. Based on the proffer, if true,
Hawsaw's testimony will not provide relevant information. The issue of
ownership, while of some interest, is not relevant to status. What is relevant is
possession, usage, connection and presence. Hawsawi's testimony will not speak
to any relevant information in regard to such points. As such, the request for the
production of that witness is denied.

PRESIDENT: If you would like to respond to that, Ell hear you.

DETAINEE: Most of these facts which be written are related to this hard drive. And more than
eleven of these facts are related to this computer. Other things are which is very
old even nobody can bring any witnesses for that as you written here if it will be
ah a value for you for the witness near by you will do it. This computer is not for
me. Is for Hawsawi himself. So I'm saying I need Hawsawi because .e and him
we both been arrested day. Same way. So this computer is from him long time.
And also the problem we are not in court and we are not judge and he is not my
lawyer but the procedure has been written reported and the way has mostly as
certain charged against e; tell him, [Arabic Phrase].

TRANSLATOR: [T anslating] They are only accusations.

DETAINEE: So accusations. And the accusations, they are as you put for yourself ah definition
for enemy combatant there are also many definitions for that accusation of fact or
charges that has been written for any ab. [Arabic Phrase]

TRA'\ S LATOR: [ Translating ] Person is accused.
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DETAINEE: So, if I been accused then if you want to put facts against me also the definition
for these facts. If you now read number N now what is written the hojinku plot.
Is know many lead investigation it is not related to anything facts to be against
me. So when I said computer hard drivel hard disk, same thing. All these point
only one witness he can say yes or not cause he is this computer is under his
possession him computer. And also specifically if he said Mohammad Atta
picture been this hard drive. I don't think this should accepted. There are many
100 thousand Americans who have a lot of picture on their computer. You cannot
say I find Muhammad Atta on your computer then you use this fact against you.
Or you find any files in your computer to be what about it's mine, it's not y
computer. If this witness, he will state that this known and here that has been
ninety percent of what is written is wrong. And for Ramzi, for reporter in
Jazeera, he claimed that I state this one and you know the media man. How they
are fashionable. What they mean in their own way in a whole different way.
They just wrote it so he say I state. But I never stated and I don't have any
witnesses and witness are available here at Guantanamo. He is Detainee. file was
with me. Which he been mostly in all my interview with him. Me and them,
there was three person, me and Ramzi and this reporter. So if you not believe me,
not believe him, believe my witness Ramzi. Then he's what he state the reporter
most is false. I not denying that I'm not an enemy combatant about this war but
I'm denying the report. It not being written in the proper way. Which is really
facts and mostly just being gathered many information. General information that
form in way of doing, to use in facts against me.

PRESIDENT: I have heard and understood your argument. In order for me to make my
determinations regarding the production of witnesses I first have to believe that
they are relevant for the reasons that I have stated. For the reasons I have stated. I
do not believe they are relevant. Whether or not they may be available here on
Guantanamo, is a second decision to be made, but only if I decide they are
relevant. I have heard your arguments. I noted them. However, my ruling
stands.

PRESIDENT; The Recorder has no witnesses, is that my understanding?

RECORDER: No, sire

PRESIDENT: And there are no other approved witnesses to taken up. Ab, we will take a brief
moment to review the unclassified evidence that we received so far and then we
will pick back up in the proceeding.

MEMBER: If I might ask a question real quick of the PR. This is the entire translation of the
hand written notes?
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PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Yeah. The hand written notes are the Detainee is on yellow.

MEMBER: Yes.

PEP SONAL
REI'RI Si N'fATIVE: and, then the nest set of notes, hand written notes, are the Linguist's translation

and then the final hard copy printed that's, alt, that...

MEMBER: Type written.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Typed from Linguist's notes.

MEMBER:

PRESIDENT:.

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

MEMBER:

TRANSLATOR:

PRLSII)ENT:

TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

TRANSLATOR:

TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

Type from Linguist's translations. Okay.

Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, I did not offer you an oath early because 1 was
informed by the Personal. Representative that you would be making some
statement later on in these proceedings relevant to the truthfulness of your
comments. So, if you would like to take an oath I would administer one to you
but I did understand that you going to make a statement.

In the final statement, I will explain why then.

Alright. Thank you. [Tribunal pauses to review D-a thru D-d]

Seen those.

Sir.

Yes.

He wanted me to translate a Koranic verse on the spot.

I will permit it.

Thank you.

Can I ask him for clarification?

Yes.

Do you need a few more moments, Translator?
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TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

TRANSLATOR:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

TRANSLATOR:

Yes, sir, about thirty seconds.

Go ahead and take your time.

Would you me to read the English translation after he read Arabic verse or would
like him to read it.

You want to save that for later?

[Nods head]

Alright.

Let me take up a few things that have come up as based on thy review of these
documents that have been provided to us so far . D-d, appears to be a written
statement regarding certain treatment that you claim to have received at the hands
of agents of the United Stated government as you indicated from the time of your
capture in 2003 up until before coming here to Guantanamo in September 2006.

Is that correct?

Yes.

Alright.

Now, I haven't seen any statements in the evidence we receive so far that claim to
come from you other than acknowledging whether you were or not the head of the
Military Committee. Were any statements that you made as the result of any of
the treatment that you received during that time frame from 2003 to 2006? Did
you make those statements because of the treatment you receive from these
people?

Statement for whom?

To any of these interrogators.

CIA peoples. Yes. At the beginning when they transferred me [REDACTED].

What I'm trying to get at is any statement that you made was it because of this
treatment, to use your word, you claim torture. Do you make any statements
because of that?

Sir_ for clarification.
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PRESIDENT: Can you translate it?

TRANSLATOR: I will translate in Arabic.

PRESIDENT:

TRANSLATOR:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE,

Yes.

[Translating above]

I ah cannot remember now [REDACTED] I'm senior man. Many people they
know me which I don't them. I ask him even if he knew George Bush. He said,
yes I do. He don't know you that not means its false. [REDACTED]. I said yes
or not. This I said.

Alright, I understand.

Is there anything you would like to correct, amend, modify or explain to us from
what you said back then?

I want to just it is not related enemy combatant but I'm saying for you to be
careful with people. That you have classified and unclassified facts. My opinion
to be fair with people. Because when I say, I will not regret when 1 say Fm
enemy combatant. I did or not I know there are other but there are many
Detainees which you receive classified against them maybe, maybe not take away
from me for many Detainees false witnesses. This only advice.

So you are aware that other...

Yes.

People made false statement as a result of this?

I did also.

Leh huh.

I told him, I know him yes. There are and they are. Not even you show me. This
I don't know him I never met him at all. So, unclassified which is both classified
and unclassified so this is you know him you don't know him. You have to be
fair with people. There are many many people which they have never been part
of the Taliban. Afghanistan there have been many people arrested for example
people who have been arrested after October 2001 after make attack against
Afghanistan many of them just arrive after they don't what has happen. When
Russian came to Afghanistan they felt they went back but they did anything with
Taliban and al Qaida then came after that. I don't know why it was younger
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PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINI: l :

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

PRESIDENT:

people same thing for Afghanis people they show Afghanis people . I will give
example one . Ilis name is Sayed Habib . This I remember . [REDACTED]

Alright.

Now what.

For me nothing which was recorded. For which is written here is not related

I understand.

I do note that in one of the exhibits you indicate you are not under any pressure or
duress todaye Is that correct?

That is about I'm hearing today. Yes.

So anything.

Some of this information, I not state it to them.

The information that you are telling us today, so we are clear. You do not believe
you are under any pressure or threat or duress to speak to us today, is that correct?

Yes, that's correct.

Alright.

Now what you have told us about your previous treatment is on the record of
these proceeding now and will be reported for ariy investigation that may be
appropriate. Also, we will consider what you have told us in making our
determination regarding your enemy combatant status.

I hope you will take care of other Detainees with what I said. It's up to you.

I will do as I've said. I'll see to it that it is reported.

Alright. At this point, we are going to go into the final statement but I do want to
give the opportunity to the Recorder, PR, and Tribunal member to ask questions if
they would like. So, what will do is proceed then to the Detainee's final
statement and then i11 have a question and answer session following that. Alright
just give me a moment.

Alright.
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PRESIDENT: Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, this concludes the presentation of unclassified
information to the Tribunal. We are about to conclude the unclassified portion of
the hearing. Do you wish to now make any final statement to the Tribunal? You
have the assistance of your PR.

DETAINEE: I make a two part . Maybe he will read then I will go also.

PRESIDENT: eery well. You may continue.

PERSONAL

REPRESENTATIVE: Mr. President, the Detainee has asked me to read his final statement to the
Tribunal with the understanding he may interject or add statements if he needs to,
to correct what I say. According to the Detainee:

"I hereby admit and affirm without duress to the following:

I. I swore Bay'aat (i.e., allegiance) to Sheikh Usama Bin Laden to conduct Jihad of self and
money, and also Hijrah (i.e., expatriation to any location in the world where Jihad is required).

2. 1 was a member of the Al Qaida Council.
3. I was the Media Operations Director for Al-Sahab, or The Clouds,' under Dr. Ayman Al-

Zawahiri. Al-Sahab is the media outlet that provided A1-Qaida-sponsored information to Al
Jazeera. Four. "

DETAINEE: [speaking inaudibly to Personal Representative]

PRESIDENT: Please tell.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: In other channels or other media outlets.

PRESIDENT: Thank you.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: [continuing] 4. I was the Operational Director for Sheikh Usama Bin Laden

for the organizing, planning, follow-up, and execution of the 9/i I Operation under the Military
Commander , Sheikh Abu Hafs Al- Masri Subhi Abu Sittah.

5. I was the Military Operational Commander for all foreign operations around the world under
the direction of Sheikh Usama Bin Laden and Dr. Ayman Al-Zawahiri.

b. 1 was directly in charge , after the death of Sheikh Abu I"lafs Al-Masri Subhi Abu Sittah, of
managing and following up on the Cell for the Production of Biological Weapons, such as
anthrax and others, and following up on . Dirty Bomb Operations on American soil.

7. I was Emir (i.e., commander) of Beit Al Shuhada (i.e., the Martyrs' House) in the state of
Kandahar, Afghanistan, which housed the 9/I l hijackers . There I was responsible for their
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training and readiness for the execution of the 9/11 Operation. Also, I hereby admit and affirm
without duress that I was a responsible participant, principal planner, trainer, financier (via the
Military Council Treasury), executor, and/or a personal participant in the following:

1. 1 was responsible for the 1993 World Trade Center Operation.
2. 1 was responsible for the 9/11 Operation, from A to Z.
3. 1 decapitated with my blessed right hand the head of the American Jew, Daniel Pearl, in

the city of Karachi, Pakistan. For those who would like to confirm, there are pictures of
me on the Internet holding his head.

4. I was responsible for the Shoe Bomber Operation to dour two American airplanes.
5. 1 was responsible for the Filka Island Operation in Kuwait that killed two American

soldiers.
b. 1 was responsible for the bombing of a nightclub in Bali. Indonesia, which was

frequented by British and Australian nationals.
7. 1 was responsible for planning, training, surveying, and financing the New (or Second)

Wave attacks against the following skyscrapers after 9/11:
a. Library Tower, California.
b. Sears Tower, Chicago,
c. Plaza Bank, Washington state.
d. The Empire State Building, New York City.

8. I was responsible for planning, financing, & follow-up of Operations to destroy
American military vessels and oil tankers in the Straights of Hormuz, the Straights of
Gibralter, and the Port of Singapore.

9. I was responsible for planning, training, surveying, and financing for the Operation to
bomb and destroy the Panama Canal.

10. 1 was responsible. for surveying and financing for the assassination of several former
American Presidents, including President Carter.

11.1 was responsible for surveying, planning, and financing for the bombing of suspension
bridges in New York.

12.1 was responsible for planning to destroy the Sears Tower by burning a few fuel or oil
tanker trucks beneath it or around it.

13. I was responsible for planning, surveying, and financing for the operation to destroy
Heathrow Airport, the Canary Wharf Building, and Big Ben on British soil.

14. 1 was responsible for planning, surveying, and financing for the destruction of many
night clubs frequented by American and British citizens on Thailand soil.

15. 1 was responsible for surveying and financing for the destruction of the New York
Stock Exchange and other financial targets after 9/11.

16. 1 was responsible for planning, financing, and surveying for the destruction of buildings
in the Israeli city of Elat by using airplanes leaving from Saudi Arabia.

17. 1 was responsible for planning, surveying, and financing for the destruction of
American embassies in Indonesia, Australia, and Japan.
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18. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destruction of the Israeli embassy
in India, Azerbaijan, the Philippines, and Australia.

19. I was responsible for surveying and financing for the destruction of an Israeli `El-Al'
Airlines flight on Thailand soil departing from Bangkok Airport.

20. I was responsible for sending several Mujahadeen into Israel to conduct surveillance to
hit several strategic targets deep in Israel.

21. I was responsible for the bombing of the hotel in Mombasa that is frequented by Jewish
travelers via El-Al airlines.

22. I was responsible for launching a Russian-made SA-7 surface-to-air missile on E1-Al or
other Jewish airliner departing from Mombasa.

23. I was responsible for planning and surveying to hit American targets in South Korea,
such as American military bases and a few night clubs frequented by American
soldiers.

24. I was responsible for financial, excuse me, I was responsible for providing financial
support to hit American, Jewish, and British targets in Turkey.

25. I was responsible for surveillance needed to hit nuclear power plants that generate
electricity in several U.S. states.

26. I was responsible for planning, surveying, and financing to hit NATO Headquarters in
Europe.

27. I was responsible for the planning and surveying needed to execute the Bojina
Operation, which was designed to down twelve American airplanes full of passengers.
I personally monitored a round-trip, Manila-to-Seoul, Pan Am flight.

28. I was responsible for the assassination attempt against President Clinton during his visit
to the Philippines in 1994 or 1995.

29. I was responsible for the assassination attempt against Pope John Paul the second while
he was visiting the Philippines."

DETAINEE: I was not responsible , but share.

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: I shared responsibility . I will restate number twenty nine.

29. "I shared responsibility for the assassination attempt against Pope John Paul the second
while he was visiting the Philippines.

30. I was responsible for the training and financing for the assassination of Pakistan's
President Musharaf.

31. I was responsible for the attempt to destroy an American oil company owned by the
Jewish former Secretary of State, Henry Kissinger, on the island of Sumatra,
Indonesia."
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PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: Sir, that concludes the written portion of the Detainee's final statement and as

he has alluded to earlier he has some additional comments he would like to make.

PRESID. Alright. Before you proceed, Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, the statement that was
just read by the Personal Representative, were those your words?

BEGIN DETAINEE ORAL STATEMENT

DETAINEE:

PERSONAL
REPRESENTA]

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT :

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

PRESIDENT:

DETAINEE:

Yes. And I want to add some of this one just for some verification. It like some
operations before I join al Qaida. Before I remember al Qaida which is related to
Bojinka Operation I went to destination involve to us iii 94, 95. Some Operations
which means out of ai Qaida. It's like beheading Daniel Pearl. It's not related to
al Qaida. It was shared in Pakistani. Other group, Mujahadeen. The story of
Daniel Pearl, because he stated for the Pakistanis, group that he was working with
the both. His mission was in Pakistan to track about Richard Reed trip to Israel.
Richard Reed, do you have trip? You send it Israel to make set for targets in
Israel. His mission in Pakistan from Israeli intelligence, Mosad, to make
interview to ask about when be was there. Also, he mention to them he was both.
He have relation with CIA people and were the Mosad. But he was not related to
al Qaida at all or UBL. It is related to the Pakistan Mujahadeen group. Other
operations mostly are some word I'm not accurate in saying. I'm responsible but
if you read the heading history. The line there [Indicating to Personal
Representative a place or Exhibit Dc],

VE: [Reading] "Also, hereby admit and affirm without duress that I was a
responsible participant, principle planner, trainer, financier."

For this is not necessary as I responsible, responsible. But with in these things
responsible participant in finances.

I understand. I want to be clear, though, is you that were the author of that
document.

That' s right.

That it is true?

That's true.

Alright. You may continue with your statement.

Okay. I start in Arabic.
ISN ' 0024
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PRESIDENT: Please.

DETAINEE
(through translator): In the name of God the most compassionate, the most merciful. and if any fail to

retaliation by way of charity and. I apologize. I will start again. And if any fail
to judge by the light of Allah has revealed, they are no better than wrong doers,
unbelievers, and the unjust.

DETAINEE: For this verse, I not take the oath. Take an oath is a part of your Tribunal and I'll
not accept it. To be or accept the Tribunal as to be, I'll accept it. That I'm
accepting American constitution, American law or whatever you are doing here.
This is why religiously I cannot accept anything you do. Just to explain for this
one, does not mean I'm not saying that Pm lying. When I not take oath does not
mean Pm lying. You know very well peoples take oath and they will lie. You
know the President he did this before he just makes his oath and he lied. So
sometimes when. I' not making oath does not mean I'm lying.

PRESIDENT : I understand.

DETAINEE: Second thing. When I wrote this thing. I mean, the PR he told me that President
may stop you at anytime and he don't like big mouth nor you to talk too much.
To be within subject. So, I will try to be within the enemy combatant subject

PRESIDENT: You can say whatever you'd like to say so long as it's relevant to what we are
discussing here today.

DETAINEE: Okay, thanks.

DETAINEE: What I wrote here, is not I'm making myself hero, when I said I was responsible
for this or that. But your are military man. You know very well there are
language for any war. So, there are, we are when I admitting these things I'm not
saying I'm. not did it. I did it but this the language of any war. If America they
want to invade Iraq they will not send for Saddam roses or kisses they send for a
bombardment. This is the best way if I want. If I'm fighting for anybody admit
to them I'm American enemies. For sure, Fm American enemies. Usama bin
Laden, he did his best press conference in American media. Mr. John Miller he
been there when he made declaration against Jihad, against America. And he said
it is not no need for me now to make explanation of what he said but mostiy he
said about American military presence in Arabian peninsula and aiding Israel and
many things. So when we made any war against America we are jackals fighting
in the nights. I consider myself, for what you are doing, a religious thing as you
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consider us fundamentalist. So, we derive from religious leading that we consider
we and George Washington doing same thing. As consider George Washington
as hero. Muslims many of them are considering Usama bin Laden. Ile is doing
same thing. He is just fighting. He needs his independence. Even we think that,
or not me only. Many Muslims, that al Qaida or Taliban they are doing. They
have been oppressed by America. This is the feeling of the prophet. So when we
say we are enemy combatant, that right. We are. But I'm asking you again to be
fair with many Detainees which are not enemy combatant. Because many of
them have been unjustly arrested. Many, not one or two or three. Cause the
definition you which wrote even from my view it is not fair. Because if I was in
the first Jihad times Russia. So I have to be Russian enemy. But America
supported e in this because I' their alliances when I was fighting Russia.
Same job I' doing. I' fighting. I was fighting there Russia now I'm fighting
America. So, many people who been in Afghanistan never live. Afhanistan stay
in but they not share Taliban or aI Qaida. They been Russian time and they
cannot go back to their home with their corrupted government. They stayed there
and when America invaded Afghanistan parliament. They had been arrest. They
never have been with Taliban or the others. So many people consider them as
enemy but they are not. Because definitions are very wide definition so people
they came after October of 2002, 2001. When America invaded Afghanistan, they
just arrive in Afghanistan cause the hear there enemy. They don't know what it
means al Qaida or Usama bin Laden or Taliban. They don`t care about these
things. They heard they were enemy in Afghanistan they just arrived. As they
heard first time Russian invade Afghanistan. They arrive they fought when back
than they came. They don't know what's going on and Taliban they been head of
government. You consider e even Taliban even the president of whole
government. Many people they join Taliban because they are the government.
When K.arzai they came they join Karzai when come they join whatever public
they don't know what is going on. So, many Taliban fight even the be fighters
because they just because public. The government is Taliban then until now CIA
don't have exactly definition well who is Taliban, who is al Qaida. Your Tribunal
now are discussing he is enemy or not and that is one of your jobs. So this is why
you find many Afghanis people, Pakistanis people even, they don't know what
going on they just hear they are fighting and 1 help Muslim. in Afghanistan.
Then what. There are some infidels which they came here and they have to help
them. But then there weren't any intend to do anything against America. Taliban
themselves between Taliban they said Afghanistan which they never again against
9/i l operation. The rejection between senior of Taliban of what al Qaida are
doing. Many of Taliban rejected what they are doing. Even many Taliban, they
not agree about why we are in Afghanistan. Some of them they have been with
us. Taliban never in their life at all before America invade them the intend to do
anything against A9 rica. They never been with al Qaida. Does not mean we are
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here as American now. They gave political asylum for many countries. They
gave for Chinese oppositions or a North Korean but that does not mean they are
with them same thing many of Taliban. They harbor us as al Qaida does not
mean we are together. So, this is why I'm asking you to be fair with Afghanis
and Pakistanis and many Arabs which been in. Afghanistan. Many of them been
unjustly. The funny story they been Sunni government they sent some spies to
assassinate UBL then we arrested them sent them to AfghanistanlTaliban.
Taliban put them into prison. Americans they came and arrest them. as enemy
combatant. They brought them here. So, even if they are my enemy but not fair
to be there with me. This is what Pm saying, The way of the war, you know,
very well, any country waging war against their enemy the language of the war
are killing. If man and woman they be together as a marriage that is up to the
kids, children. But if you and e, two nations, will be together in war the others
are victims. This is the way of the language. You know 44 million people were
kilted in World War One. Ten million kill in World War. You know that two
million four hundred thousand be killed in the Korean War. So this language of
the war. Any people who, when. Usama bin Laden say Fm waging war because
such such reason, now he declared it. But when you said I'm terrorist, I think it is
deceiving peoples. Terrorists, enemy combatant. All these definitions as CIA
you can make whatever you want. Now, you told e when I ask about the
witnesses, I'm not convinced that this related to the matter. It is up to you.
Maybe I'm convinced but your are head and he [gesturing to Personal
Representative} is not responsible, the other, because your are head of the
committee. So, finally it's your war but the problem is no definitions of many
words. It would be widely definite that many people be oppressed. Because war.
for sure, there will be victims. When I said I'm not happy that three thousand
been killed in. America. I feel sorry even. I don't like to kill children and the
kids. Never Islam are, give me green light to kill peoples. Killing, as in the
Christianity, Jews, and Islam, are prohibited. But there are exception of rule
when you are killing people in Iraq. You said we have to do it. We don't like
Saddam. But this is the way to deal with Saddam. Same thing you are saying.
Same language you use, I use. When you are invading two thirds of Mexican;
you call your war manifest destiny. It up to you to call it what you want. But
other side are calling you oppressors. If now George Washington. If now we
were living in the Revolutionary War and George Washington he being arrested
through Britain. For sure he, they would consider him enemy combatant. But
American they consider him as hero. This right the any Revolutionary War they
will be as George Washington or Britain. So we are considered American Army
bases which we have from seventies in Iraq. Also, in the Saudi Arabian, Kuwait,
Qatar, and Bahrain. This is kind of invasion, but I'm not here to convince you. Is
not or not but mostly speech is ask you to be fair with people. I'm don't have
anything to say that I'm not enemy. This is why the language of any war in the

_ 10024
fa.clos_^ re ^^? j

.':3 of 2{s

UNCL.'

Case 1:98-cr-01023-LAK   Document 1547-1    Filed 03/16/14   Page 52 of 59

Peter
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D



UNCLASSIFIED

world is killing. I mean the language of the war is victims. I don't like to kill
people. I feel very sorry they been killed kids in 9/11. 'Tat I will do? This is
the language. Sometime I want to make great awakening between American to
stop foreign policy in our land. I know American people are torturing us from
seventies. [REDACTED] I know they talking about human rights, And I know it
is against American Constitution, against American lawse But they said every
law, they have exceptions, this is your bad luck you been part of the exception of
our laws. They got have something to convince me but we are doing same
language. But we are saying we have Sharia law, but we have Koran. What is
enemy combatant in my language?

DETAINEE
(through translator): Allah forbids you not with regards to those who fight you not for your faith nor

drive you out of your homes from dealing kindly and justly with them. For Allah
love those who are just. There is one more sentence. Allah only forbids you with
regards to those who fight you for your faith and drive you out of your homes and
support others in driving you out from turning to them for friendship and
protection. It is such as turd to them in these circumstances that do wrong.

DETAINEE: So we are driving from whatever deed we do we ask about Koran or I-ladith. We
are not making up for us laws. When we need Patwa from the religious we have
to go back to see what they said scholar. To see what they said yes or not. Killing
is prohibited in all what you call the people of the book, Jews, Judaism,
Christianity, and Islam. You know the Ten Commandments very well. The Ten
Commandments are shared between all of us. We all are serving one God. '1 hen
now kill you know it very well. But war language also vwre have language for the
war. You have to kill. But you have to care if unintentionally or intentionally
target if I have if I'm not at the Pentagon. I consider it is okay. If I target now
when we target in USA we choose them military target, economical, and political.
So, war central victims mostly means economical target. So if now American
they know UBL. He is in this house they don't care about his kids and his. They
will just bombard it. They will kill all of them and they did it. They kill wife of
Dr. Ayra Zawahiri and his two daughters and his son in one bombardment.
They receive a report that is his house be. He had not been there. They killed
them. They arrested my kids intentionally. They are kids. They been arrested for
four months they had been abused. So, for me I have patience. I know I'm not
talk about what's come to me. The American have human right. So, enemy
combatant itself, it flexible word. So I think God knows that many who been
arrested, they been unjustly arrested. Otherwise, military throughout history
know very well. They don't war will never stop. War start from Adam when
Cain he killed Abel until now. it's never gonna stop killing of people. This is the
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way of the language. American start the Revolutionary War then they starts the
Mexican then Spanish War then World War One, World War Two. You read the
history. You know never stopping war. This is life. But if who is enemy
combatant and who is not? Finally, I finish statement. I'm asking you to be fair
with other people.

PRESIDENT: Does that conclude your statement , Khalid Sheikh Muhammad?

DETAINEE: Yes.

PRESIDENT: Alright.

DETAINEE QUESTION & ANSWER

PRESIDENT: Does the Personal Representative have any questions for the Detainee based on
his statement?

PERSONAL
REPRESENTATIVE: No, Sir.

PRESIDENT: Does the Recorder have any questions for the Detainee?

RECORDER: No, Sir.

PRESIDENT: Do either of the Tribunal members wish to question the Detainee?

MEMBERS: No, sir. Nothing further Sir.

PRESIDENT: Alright.

CLOSING UNCLASSIFIED SESSION

PRESIDENT: All unclassified evidence having been provided to the Tribunal, this concludes the
open tribunal session.

PRESIDENT: Khalid Sheikh Muhammad, you shall be notified of the Tribunal decision upon

completion of the review of these proceed by the Combatant Status Review

Tribunal convening authority in Washington, D.C. If, the Tribunal determines

that you should not be classified as an enemy combatant, you will be released to

your home country as soon as arrangements can be made. If however, the

Tribunal determines your classification as an enemy combatant you may be

eligible for an Administrative Review Board hearing at a future date.
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PRESIDENT: The Administrative Review Board will make an assessment of whether there is
continued reason to believe that you pose a threat to the United States or its
coalition partners in the ongoing armed conflict against terrorist organizations
such as al Qaeda and its affiliates and supporters or whether there are other
factors bearing upon the need for continued detention.

PRESIDENT: You will have the opportunity to be heard and to present relevant information to
the Administrative Review Board. You can present information from your family
and friends that might help you at that Board. You are encouraged to contact
them as soon as passible to begin to gather information that may help you.

PRESIDENT: A military officer will be assigned at a later date to assist you in the
Administrative Review Board process.

ADJOURN OPEN SESSION

PRESIDENT: The open session of this Tribunal hearing is adjourned.

RECORDER: The time is 2:43pm. The date is 10 March 2007.

RECORDER : All Rise.

[The Tribunal withdrew from the hearing room]

AUTI-IENTICATION

I certify the material contained in this transcript is a true and accurate verbatim rendering of the
testimony and English language translation of Detainee's words given during the open session of the
Combatant Status Review Tribunal of ISN 10024.

[REDATED]
CAPT JAGC USN
Tribunal President

N#10024
i. 3)

6 of26

(JNCL : 1)

Case 1:98-cr-01023-LAK   Document 1547-1    Filed 03/16/14   Page 55 of 59

Peter
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT D



 
This copy is for your personal, noncommercial use only. You can order 
presentation-ready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or 

customers here or use the "Reprints" tool that appears next to any article. Visit www.nytreprints.com for samples and additional 
information. Order a reprint of this article now. 

 
 
 

 
April 20, 2009 

Waterboarding Used 266 Times on 2 Suspects 

By SCOTT SHANE 

C.I.A. interrogators used waterboarding, the near-drowning technique that top 
Obama administration officials have described as illegal torture, 266 times on 
two key prisoners from Al Qaeda, far more than had been previously reported. 

The C.I.A. officers used waterboarding at least 83 times in August 2002 
against Abu Zubaydah, according to a 2005 Justice Department legal 
memorandum. Abu Zubaydah has been described as a Qaeda operative. 

A former C.I.A. officer, John Kiriakou, told ABC News and other news media 
organizations in 2007 that Abu Zubaydah had undergone waterboarding for 
only 35 seconds before agreeing to tell everything he knew. 

The 2005 memo also says that the C.I.A. used waterboarding 183 times in 
March 2003 against Khalid Shaikh Mohammed, the self-described planner of 
the Sept. 11, 2001, terrorist attacks. 

The New York Times reported in 2007 that Mr. Mohammed had been barraged 
more than 100 times with harsh interrogation methods, causing C.I.A. officers 
to worry that they might have crossed legal limits and to halt his questioning. 
But the precise number and the exact nature of the interrogation method was 
not previously known. 

The release of the numbers is likely to become part of the debate about the 
morality and efficacy of interrogation methods that the Justice Department 
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under the Bush administration declared legal even though the United States had 
historically treated them as torture. 

President Obama plans to visit C.I.A. headquarters Monday and make public 
remarks to employees, as well as meet privately with officials, an agency 
spokesman said Sunday night. It will be his first visit to the agency, whose use 
of harsh interrogation methods he often condemned during the presidential 
campaign and whose secret prisons he ordered closed on the second full day of 
his presidency. 

C.I.A. officials had opposed the release of the interrogation memo, dated May 
30, 2005, which was one of four secret legal memos on interrogation that Mr. 
Obama ordered to be released last Thursday. 

Mr. Obama said C.I.A. officers who had used waterboarding and other harsh 
interrogation methods with the approval of the Justice Department would not 
be prosecuted. He has repeatedly suggested that he opposes Congressional 
proposals for a “truth commission” to examine Bush administration 
counterterrorism programs, including interrogation and warrantless 
eavesdropping. 

The Senate Intelligence Committee has begun a yearlong, closed-door 
investigation of the C.I.A. interrogation program, in part to assess claims of 
Bush administration officials that brutal treatment, including slamming 
prisoners into walls, shackling them in standing positions for days and 
confining them in small boxes, was necessary to get information. 

The fact that waterboarding was repeated so many times may raise questions 
about its effectiveness, as well as about assertions by Bush administration 
officials that their methods were used under strict guidelines. 

A footnote to another 2005 Justice Department memo released Thursday said 
waterboarding was used both more frequently and with a greater volume of 
water than the C.I.A. rules permitted. 
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The new information on the number of waterboarding episodes came out over 
the weekend when a number of bloggers, including Marcy Wheeler of the 
blog emptywheel, discovered it in the May 30, 2005, memo. 

The sentences in the memo containing that information appear to have been 
redacted from some copies but are visible in others. Initial news reports about 
the memos in The New York Times and other publications did not include the 
numbers. 

Michael V. Hayden, director of the C.I.A. for the last two years of the Bush 
administration, would not comment when asked on the program “Fox News 
Sunday” if Mr. Mohammed had been waterboarded 183 times. He said he 
believed that that information was still classified. 

A C.I.A. spokesman, reached Sunday night, also would not comment on the 
new information. 

Mr. Hayden said he had opposed the release of the memos, even though 
President Obama has said the techniques will never be used again, because they 
would tell Al Qaeda “the outer limits that any American would ever go in terms 
of interrogating an Al Qaeda terrorist.” 

He also disputed an article in The New York Times on Saturday that said Abu 
Zubaydah had revealed nothing new after being waterboarded, saying that he 
believed that after unspecified “techniques” were used, Abu Zubaydah revealed 
information that led to the capture of another terrorist suspect, Ramzi 
Binalshibh. 

The Times article, based on information from former intelligence officers who 
spoke on condition of anonymity, said Abu Zubaydah had revealed a great deal 
of information before harsh methods were used and after his captors stripped 
him of clothes, kept him in a cold cell and kept him awake at night. The article 
said interrogators at the secret prison in Thailand believed he had given up all 
the information he had, but officials at headquarters ordered them to use 
waterboarding. 
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He revealed no new information after being waterboarded, the article said, a 
conclusion that appears to be supported by a footnote to a 2005 Justice 
Department memo saying the use of the harshest methods appeared to have 
been “unnecessary” in his case. 
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